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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The Board of Directors of Technology Upgradation and Skill Development Company
(Your Company) is pleased to present the Annual Report along with the audited financial
statements for the year ended June 30, 2024.

1- TUSDEC OVERVIEW

The establishment of TUSDEC came about as an implementation of Engineering Vision. The
company was incorporated in 2005 as a Not-for-profit, guarantee limited company, a
subsidiary of PIDC (Pakistan Industrial Development Caorporation Pvi. Lid.). The Objective of
the company is to promote and establish Technology Up-gradation Centers and Skill
Development Centers by establishing / providing common facility, design, support and
maintenance, lesting, certification, incubation, applied research, dissemination centers and /
or any other institution deemed necessary for up-gradation / assimilation /streamlining /
acquiring technology, however the Company shall not itself set-up or otherwise engage in
industrial or commercial activities or in any manner function as a trade organization. TUSDEC
is established to up-grade and transfer technology in industrial sector(s) relating but not
limited to agro processing, chemicals, plastic, glass, metal, ceramics, auto motives,
consumer durables and mining for introducing latest machinery therein so that production
capability can be brought at par with international standards.

Since its inception, TUSDEC has absolutely fulfilled all of its strategic commitment aligned to
the vision of building prosperous Pakistan. Over the years, TUSDEC has implemented
numerous projects of Federal and Provincial Government, International Donors and
collaborated with local NGOs and CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) Wings to implement
large-scale development initiatives in diverse areas like TDM (Tools Dies and Moulds), Digital
Product Design & Engineering, Ceramics, Cement and Garments industrial clusters.
Cognizant to the dichotomy of manpower abundance and prevalent economics crises
trickling down in the form of raging impoverishment in the country, TUSDEC is emphasizing
on vocational skill development of vulnerable communities. The company is also pursuing
many TVET (Technical, Vocational Education & Training) initiatives focusing on the capacity
bullding of marginalized women thereby enabling them to mitigate the socioeconomic
adversaries.

The countries surfing in the global limelight have adopted knowledge management as an
element to build and uphold their competitive advantages. Accomplishment of knowledge
directs the achievement of national aspirations and bullds on national integrity. TUSDEC has
synchronized Its visionary sireams with the enlightened goals of Governmenl of Pakistan
aimed at building a National Skill Base, In collaboration with Federal and Provincial
Governments, various international donors and local nonprofit organizations, TUSDEC has
been striving to shift the TVET mechanism of Pakistan from a supply driven to a fraining
system that is compelled by the industry's demand for skill in the curricula, training
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methodologies and foremost the areas of training. From ftraining the managers, machine
workers and acute product design engineers to employable skills disbursement for vulnerable
groups, TUSDEC has successfully carried through each strand of industrial support.
Interpolating the service profile, the company has broadened the ambit of its operations by
implementing TVET reform projects of the Delegation of European Union in KP, FATA Sindh
and AJK.

Since its very outset, TUSDEC is continued to record its efforts and accomplishment across
the country. From the grand-scale interventions of lechnological upgradation, basic and
advanced technical skills dissemination to the vocational training and capacity building of the
modest communities, TUSDEC has followed through a myriad of project amounting to PkR
10 billion plus. Each initiative has testified the company's contribution in hauling up the
progression of national economy.

Public Sector Development programme (PSDP) is the most important fiscal policy lool to
achleve socio economic largets as envisaged In the Vision 2025 by channelizing scarce
public resources to projects having complementary and crowding in impact on economic
activities. Ultimate goal of the spending under PSDP is to further strengthen physical and
social infrastructure to put our country on sustainable and high growth trajectory.

The year under review was the 18th operational year of your Company in which three
projects, namely NIDA (Lahore, Quetta & Sialkot) completed 18" years of successful
operations. The other two NIDA Centers (Karachi & Peshawar) have completed 17" years
of operations. SkillTech Karachi has completed 14th year of its operational activities.
Gujranwala Tools Dies and Moulds Centre (GTDMC) has completed 14th year while
Ceramics Development and Training Complex (CDTC) has also completed 14th year of its
operational activities. Cement Research and Training Institute (CR&DI) has completed
18th year of its operational activities. A detailed report on the achievements of your Company
during the year is given as under:

Financial Performance:

Particulars 2023-24 (Rs.) 2022-23 (Rs.)

Income 144 121,668 203,676,859
Expenditures before depreciation and amortization 125,801,988 174,004,781
Surplus/(Deficit) before depreciation and 18,319,680 29,672,078
amortization i :
Depreciation and amortization 108,742,496 106,077,825
Levy / final taxation 1,278,944 5

' Net deficit after depreciation, amortization and (91,701,760) (76,405,747)

levy / final taxation
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2 — Technology Upgradation Centers (TUCs)

i} Gujranwala Tools Dies and Moulds Centre (GTDMC) (Operational)
Gujranwala Tools, Dies and Moulds Centre (GTDMC) is modern engineering centre which
provide training, consultancy, design, machining, and manufacturing services to the loca!
industry.

A brief table of operational results for the year 2023-24 & 2022-23 are as under:

Type of Job 2023-24 2022-23
No of Industrial Jobs (Heat Treatment, Mold and Die
Making & 3D Scanning, machining and surface 79 Jobs 46 Jobs
Treatment etc.,)
No. of participants trained (PSDF, NAVTTC & GIiZ 221 Trainees
efc.) ST 100 in process

ii) Ceramics Development and Training Centre (CDTC) (Operational)
The fundamental aim of CDTC is to upgrade the ceramics industry specifically the sanitary
ware sector with integrated engineering solutions, contemporary machinery, latest
technology, Laboratory for testing facilities of ceramics raw materials and process control.

A brief table of operational results for the year 2023-24 & 2022-23 are as under:

Type of Job 2023-24 2022-23
No of Industrial Jobs (Shuttle Kling, CNC Pattern Making & 36 354
Consultancy)
—Laboratory services (Samples Tested) 56 188
Training of Trainees (PSDF, NAVTTC etc.) 55 153

The significant maintenance work undertaken during the year led to a reduction in the
center's services throughout the financial year under review,

ilf) Cement Research and Development Institute (CR&DI) (Operational)

After up-gradation and revitalization of the CR&DI laboratory and building, the laboratory
started functioning under TUSDEC management and control in January 2006. Minor
renovation activities were carried out and separate physical lab was established to maintain
temperature.
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b e TUSDEC
TUSDEC has successfully upgraded CR&DI through its approved PC-1 of “National Strategic
Program for Acquisition of Industrial Technolegy” (NSPAIT). Lab has been fully renovated
after civil and interior work, Procurement of partial machinery completed as per allocation,
machinery procured and installed and in operations. Latest testing equipment includes NDT
lests and concrete testing equipment,

CR&DI is successfully conducting test on American Cement Standards, European Cement
Standards, Sri Lanka Cement Standards, Indian Cement Standards, Pakistan's latest
Standards for common & Masonry Cements for testing and has also initialized compressive
Strength of Concrete & Fire Bricks Crushing Strength & Chemical Analysis of Silica fumes,
Fly Ash and Slag, Cylinder testing, Concrete Expansion testing and Testing of Dolomite.

CR&DI credibility has been acknowledged by:

« 34 Consultants
« 92 Construction Firms
e 29 Cement Factores

A brief table of operational results for the year 2023-24 & 2022-23 are as under:

e Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Laboratory services (Samples Tested) 1,635 1,658
Revenue (Rs.) , Rs. 12,118,120 | Rs. 12,291,912

Engineering Support Centres (ESCs)

TUSDEC is running 03 Engineering Support Centres including Hyderabad Engineering
Support Centre, Light Engineering Upgradation Centre for SMEs in Baluchistan and
Peshawar Light Engineering Centre. These centres were merged into TUSDEC w.e.f 01 July
2021.

The centres are facilitating the local industry with modern design, training, and consultancy
services to local industry

(iv) Peshawar Light Engineering Centre (PLEC)

« 148 Industrial Jobs/Parts performed on different machines.
« 13 participants trained in various technical trades under NAVTTC PMYSDP.

(v) Light Engineering Upgradation Centre for SMEs in Baluchistan (LEUC)
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« 28 Industnal Jobs/Parts performed on different machines

{(vi) Hyderabad Engineering Support Centre (HESC)

The center was underperforming, and as part of the restructuring of TUSDEC's operational
divisions, the Board of Directors has approved the transfer of HESC facilities to other
divisions on an as-needed basis.

3 - Skills Development Centers (SDCs)

a) PSDP/PIDC/PSDF Funded Initiatives:
i) Skilltech International Karachi- (PIDC Funded)

TUSDEC established SkillTech International Karachi in 2009 through funding from PIDC. The
centre started its operations in April 2010. The centre aims at equipping the youth with
international level technical skills to enable them to compete in national and international job
markets. The centre provides various short technical courses in specified engineering fields
and provides vocational and management trainings. The centre also prepares students for
various exams of City & Guilds UK in Pakistan.

The center is also currently undergoing restructuring.

ii) National Institute of Design & Analysis (NIDA) (Advanced CAD/CAM) Centre Rs.
321.12 Million (Lahore, Karachi, Sialkot, Peshawar & Quetta)

NIDA Centres were providing basic to advanced courses applicable in various industry
segments - mechanical, electrical, automation, civil, plant, process, garment, fashion,
jewellery efc., incorporating the academic aspects together with social interaction during the
training. NIDA training facilities are flexible and technologically advanced learning
environment is provided that are safe. healthy, comfortable, aesthetically pleasing, and
accessible,

Since the facilities for these centers were established in 2006-07, they have now become
outdated and inefficient due to technological advancements. As part of TUSDEC's
restructuring of its operational units, NIDA Quetta has been transferred to BIUTUM University
Quetia. NIDA Lahore and NIDA Sialkot have been closed, NIDA Karachi has been merged
with Skilltech, and NIDA Peshawar is also in the process of being shut down. The concept
pehind these NIDA centers has been integrated into the IDAC project, incorporating the latest
technology.
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4 — Approved Initiatives
a) Government funded (PSDP):
i) Industrial Designing & Automation Centers (IDAC) Rs.1089.87 Mn

In the modern era of Industry 4.0 revolution, Pakistan is still lagging behind in this arena due
to social-economic challenges. The country is facing slow growth rates of output and
exports due to small levels of investment, technical inefficiencies and low R&D resulting in
lower productivity and uncompetitive industries. Major reason of low economic growth is
decline in manufacturing sector of Pakistan being the backbone of Pakistan's economy.

Foreseeing the future demand of design and automation technologies of local industries and
develop strong manufacturing base of Pakistan, TUSDEC developed PC-| for establishing
“‘Industrial Designing & Automation Centres (IDAC)" in Lahore, Sialkot & Karachi to support
local industries. These centres include Rapid Prototyping, designing and automation labs to
support local industry through industrial jobs including Reverse Engineering using 3D
prototyping, scanning, and designing, automation using embedded systems, PLC kits,
SCADA, DCS and offering high end technical trainings.

The objectives of these centers are:

Provide designing services through 3D Laser Scanner facility

Provide ready to use prototypes through 3D Prototyping facility

Automation of industrial processes of key clusters

To give local industries demonstration effect about latest technologies how
automation and 3D prototyping can improve their manufacturing processes and
enhance their research and development

» Improve labor and manufacturing process efficiency to compete in the local and
international market

Current Status:

« Administrative approval of Project received on March 04, 2020

e 02 kanal land for the IDAC Lahore, Sialkot and Karachi have been procured as
per PPRA

« Construction consullant hired and Design work completed for all centres

« Construction contractor selected for Lahore, Sialkot & Karachi Centre as per
PPRA rules.

« Machinery ordered in FY 2021-22 has been successfully delivered (3D Printer,
Scanner, PLC and SCADA Lab equipment) for IDAC Lahore.

¢ Fumiture and |.T equipment has been procured for IDAC implementation team.
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* Necessary approval of NOC from KDA for Karachi Centre and construction
approval from Muncipal Department for Sialkot centre are processed.

« Tendering process for procurement of plant and machinery completed conlract
awarded to successful bidders for supply of machinery, equipment & lools.

« Hiring of implementation/operational staff in process

ii) Footwear Cluster Development through CAD/CAM & CNC Machining

In pursuance of its mandate of upgrading technology and skills of key Industrial clusters,
TUSDEC developed PC-| on “Footwear Cluster Development through CAD/CAM & CNC
Machining” to support footwear sector.

TUSDEC's project “Footwear Cluster Development through CAD/ICAM Centre, Lahore”
approved in CDWP in May 2019 with a total cost of Rs.78.69 million. TUSDEC has
completed the implementation phase and the project will contribute to national economy
through 900 product design & development job and 1600 trainings. The facility is located in
existing building of NIDA Lahore.

Current Status:

« Footwear Design Lab has been established and equipped with desktop computers,
Shoe Master Designing software, 3D Scanner and Digitizer which have been
successfully delivered and installed.

e Footwear Workshop has been established and equipped with CNC Vertical
Machining Center (5 Axis Machine) for footwear Mold Manufacturing, Conventional
machinery (Lathe machine, Shaper machine and Radial Drill Machine), 3D Printer,
2D Plotter & accessories.

« Operations of the center initiated, and jobs started like grading and pattern making,
designing, and training activities, Mold manufacturing, Product Development, etc.,
Total no. of trainee trained 29.

Total no. of mold manufactured - 12 molds and 08 lasts completed.
Total no. of shoe upper design and grading are 45.

iii) National Strategic Programme for Acquisition of Industrial Technology (NSPAIT)
Rs. 3,206.86 Mn

TUSDEC has developed "National Strategic Programme for Acquisition of Industrial
Technology (NSPAIT)" in close coordination with the stakeholders in order to "Acquire,
assimilate and improve the technology being used in various industrial sectors across
Pakistan tentatively in the following critically important industrial sectors including Textiles
(with particular ref. to Technical Textile), Construction (including Cement, Ceramics, and
Marble & Granite) and Engineering & Technology (Including Light Engineering, Cutlery and
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Gems & Jewellery)". TUSDEC selected these sectors based on the fact that Textile being the
key sector with 59.43% share in overall exports but Pakistan lacking in technical textile and
sportswear products in world export share (World Technical Textile Market: US $ 192 Bn,
Pakistan Share: US $ 0.250 Bn) due to unavailability of testing laboratory, R&D, waterless
dyeing technology and skilled workforce as per initial research and consultations with textile
sector stakeholders/experts. Similarly, construction is a high growth sector and Engineering
sector of Pakistan is a potential growth sector presently having only 1% global export share
due to low technology base and manufacturing of low-end products while the share of
engineering sector in world trade is around 55%.

TUSDEC developed "National Strategic Programme for Acquisition of Industrial Technology
(NSPAIT)" in coordination with "PM Task Force on Technology Driven Knowledge Based
Economy”. The project of NSPAIT was presented in COWP held on 18th November 2019.

According to the Minutes of CDWP the PC-| was approved to the extent of Feasibility stuay at
a cost of Rs. 89.974 Mn. and it was recommended to Initially conduct a 3rd party feasibility so
that the need identified in the PC-l could be validated and accordingly updated version of PC-
| could be resubmitted.

The NSPAIT PC-l comprised of 10 interventions in Engineering, construction and textile
sector was approved with a total cost of PKR 3,207 million.

The project will contribute to the national economy through

Output

Industrial Jobs Completed 446,029 (Total Parts /pieces 8,711769)
Industrial Testing Services 27,283

Direct Employment Generated 102

Number of Trainees 12,965

Impact

New Enterprises 409

Indirect Employment Generated 3,788
Number of Trainees 12,965

Value Addition Rs.6.4 Bn

Import Substitution Rs. 450 Mn
Increase In exports Rs. 18.7 Bn

Current Status:

« Project Physical Progress is 35%. Detail of progress achieved is as under:
« Feasibility studies completed and modified PC-| was approved on 29th
November 2021. Qut of 10 initiatives 8 initiatives are in process.
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« Renovation works for three interventions completed at Lahere, Peshawar ano
Gujranwala

« Construction Consultants selected for CIP at Wazirabad and Ceramics cenire at
Gujranwala.

« Civil Work started at Cutlery Institute Wazirabad

« Award of renovation work for PLEC Peshawar and Ceramics at Gujranwala.

« IT Equipment, office Equipment and Furniture & fixture for two interventions
procured and delivered.

» 1st Tender process completed for machinery & equipment at CRDI, GTOMC

« |T & Office Equipment & Furniture tender processed for CIP, Multan, Peshawar,
Quetta, CDTC.

» Machinery tender will be re-advertised

(V) Support Centre for Dental and Surgical Implants (SCDS) 720.345 Million Rs.

Pakistani surgical industry specifically related 1o surgical and dental implants does not
hold its footprint anywhere in global market. After conducting several surveys and
feasibility study, Technology Upgradation and Skill Development Company (TUSDEC)
clearly revealed a strong need for surgical and dental implants to fill supply and demand
gap through precision of latest product designing and development facility along with
shifting towards industrial intelligence of 4IR through automation.

To address this design and manufacturing of high precision and sensitive products related
issues of Pakistan's surgical sector, Technology Upgradation and Skill Development
Company (TUSDEC) proposes to establish Support Centre for Dental and Surgical
Implants (SCDS).

The project was approved by the DDWP forum at a total cost of Rs. 720345 Million
dated July 9, 2021 and the administrative approval was received on August 13, 2021 for
the establishment of the centre in Sialkot.

Current Status:

03 Kanal Land has been acquired in Sialkot

Construction consultant hired, designing work completed.

Tender process for selection of construction contractor completed

NOC for construction of building applied, approval awaited

Tendering process for procurement of plant and machinery completed, contract awarded
to the successful bidders for supply of machinery, equipment and tools

Request submitted to MolP for approval of 15% cost escalation observed due to higher
cost of the construction material especially steel and cement, labor cost, doliar exchange
rate and inflation, approval awaited
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» Hiring of implementation staff in process

b) Denor Funded:
i) PSDF Funded Skill Development Initiatives:

a) Skills Scholarship Initiative 2023 (MAHIR)
b) Skills for Training Program 2023-24
c) Industrial Training Program 2023-24

To produce skilled workforce; TUSDEC offered practical training programs in collaboration
with PSDF in Light Engineering sector at Gujranwala. The trades Include: CNC Machine
Operator, Injection Moulding Machine Operator, CNC Machinist, 2D and 3D Drafting Using
AutoCAD. 227 students got trained at GTDMC under Skills Training Programme 23-24(STP)
while 100 participants got trained under ITP 203-24 Mahir program. The project has improved
the livelihood prospects of the trainees through certified qualifications and better job
prospects at the national and international sphere.

ii) “Kamyab Jawan Prime Minister Youth Skill Development Program”

TUSDEC qualified for NAVTTC “Kamyab Jawan Prime Minister Youth Skill Development
Program™ Batch IV. Training imparted to 100 students at GTDMC, 13 trainees were trained
at PLEC in various trades,

ii) Hiring local service provider for Skill Development of Returnee Migrant & Local
Population (GIZ)

To enhance the income-generating capacity, social integration of returnee migrants and the
local population by providing skill development opportunities and promoting dependent &
self-employment opportunities within the country. To provide high-quality training in CNC
Machinist, CNC Programming & Model/Moulding Making & Casting In the Ceramics trades to
Returnee migrants and the local population. 60 trainees trained at GTODMC & CDTC in the
mentioned trades. The project has improved the livelihood prospects of the trainees.

5. Other Proposed Initiatives
PSDP Initiatives

i~ Industrial Technology Acquisition Policy (ITAP)

To bring a systematic approach for developing Pakistan’s technological capabilities, TUSDEC
drafied “Industrial Technology Acquisition Policy"” in order to benchmark, acguire,
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assimilate and improve the technology being used in various industrial sectors across all
major clusters of Pakistan. This draft national level policy proposes following interventions to
upgrade Pakistan's industrial technology;

« Technology Upgradation Fund (TUF) Rs 40 Bn
« 50 Technology Up-gradation Centers (TUCs) Rs 21 Bn
« 33 Technology Incubation Centers (TICs) Rs 7 Bn
« 33 Skill Development Centers (SDCs) Rs 7 Bn
« 45 Joint Ventures (JVs) Rs 40 Bn
« Establishment of Regional ITPO Offices

The total size of pilot phase is Rs. 115 Billion where Rs. 80 Billion will be private sector
investment and government share will be Rs. 35 Billion. The expected outcomes of the policy
are;

59,543 beneficiaries

27,732 new enterprises

Rs. 350 Billion increases in exports against 35 Billion investment by Government
108,064 employment generation

27,000 value added jobs

45 new JVs

The final ITAP document is submitted to MolP for further deliberation and approval.

il. Federal Institute of Homologation (FIH) (PKR 950 Million)

The quality, conformity and safety of the industrial products play a major role in worldwide
supply chain. Currently, in Pakistan there isn't any 3rd party Product / parts testing facility to
homologate products according to international standards and therefore the local industries
have to rely on the manufacturer claims. The proposed facility of "Federal Institute of
Homologation (FIH)' will provide services in testing, certification and accreditation for
industrial product from development of prototypes and pre-tests to product monitoring and
potentially the FIH Certification Mark.

FIM envisions a three-pronged strategy to facilitate the local industry aiming to enter lucralive
global markets. It will be providing product and parts testing facilities; personnei training
focused on product/system improvements to get international certifications and facilitate
certification acquiring processes. As per the demands of many countries that products should
conform to national, regional, or international quality / safely slandards such as UNR,
FMVSS. GTR, ASTM, UL, CE, BSS, JIS, GB, GSO, etc. FIH aims to provide proof of
conformity with these standards through independent and accredited product testing and

certification.
Trainings
Technology Upgradation at;aeﬁkill Development Company
Ministry of Indusines and Production
State Cemanl Corporation Bullding, Kot Lakhpat, Lahore 54770, Pakisian
@) et (+92)42.35145793.5, 35215800, 35215674, Fax: (+92)-42-35121658, tusdec.org.pk

A company sat up under Section 42 of tha Companies Ordinancs, 1984 having share capital

. G W R €

Sl



«

TUSDEC

Develop skilled work force to identifying skills and technique in testing through prowviding
professional and vocational trainings to enhance productivity and guality to comply with
international standards like ISO, CE, UL elc

Project Cost, Project life & HR

+ Rs. 1200 Mn (Capex: Rs. 900 Mn, Opex: Rs. 300 Mn)
+ 1-year execution & 3 years operations for demonstration
« 100 persons HR

Impact/ Value Addition
In three years of operation, approximate output of FIH will be

« 1500 Product/Part testing and composition jobs will be performed for
manufacturing industry

« 100 + industries will be assisted in capacity building on Product/Part testing,
composition mechanism, Standard identification and international standards
certification
150 International quality Accreditations will be granted through technical support
Exports will be enhanced
Imports will be substituted

iii. Construction Machinery Support Center (CMSC) (PKR 850 Mn.)

Gwadar is considered as a gateway of CPEC, facilitating the major trading breakthrough of
Pakistan and china. Planned SMEs in Gwadar are directly or indirectly related to
manufacturing sector. Industries include Textile Spinning, Textile Weaving (Mil Sector), Towel
Industry, Vegetable Ghee & Cooking Oil, Wool Scouring and Woolen Textile Spinning
/Weaving, Agricultural Implements, Auto Parts, Beverage, Bakery Products, Chemical,
Chip/Straw Board, Cold Storage, Cotton Ginning & Pressing, Cotton Waste, Doubling of Yarn,
Fruit Juices, Foundry Products, Pesticides & Insecticides, Packages, Poultry Feed, Rice
Mills, Sizing of Yarn, Solvent Qil Extraclion, Soap & Detergent, Tannery, Textile Processing
elc.

To meel the demands of Gwadar industry, TUSDEC is proposing “Industrialization and skill
supporl centre” which will be in capacity to:

Scan imported or locally manufactured parts

Able to testiidentify material being used in the products/parts

Able to design these parts according to the needs and demands of industry
Able to manufacture specific metal parts

Technology Upgradation amj $kill Development Company
Ministry of Industries and Production
P State Cement Corporation Building, Kot Lakhpat, Lahore 54770, Pakistan
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« Conduct analysis on the design and material type of parts/products accordingly

Project Cost, Project life & HR:

« Rs. 1200 Mn (Capex: Rs. 900 Mn, Opex: Rs. 300 Mn)
« l-year execution & 3 years operations for demonstration
« 5persons

Impact:

Contribution of manufacturing industry in GDP will increase
« Exports will increase due to the quality products manufacturing and standardization
« Imports will decrease due to low cost local available and manufactured quality
products
« SMEs will increase due to international demands
e Employment in Manufacturing sector will increase as the SME sector grows

Outputs:

Approximately 350 tests per year will be conducted

Metal manufactured parts/products exporis will increase
25 local manufactured products will be standardized
Services provided to 50 units per year

100 individuals/companies trained on designing per annum

iv Industrialization and Skill Support Centre, Gwadar (ISSC) (PKR 800 Mn.)

Gwadar is considered as a gateway of CPEC, facilitating the major trading breakthrough of
Pakistan and china. Planned SMEs in Gwadar are directly or indirectly related to
manufacturing sector. Industries inciude Textile Spinning, Textile Weaving (Mill Sector), Towel
Industry, Vegetable Ghee & Cooking Oil, Wool Scouring and Woolen Textile Spinning
fWeaving, Agricultural Implements, Auto Parts, Beverage, Bakery Products, Chemical,
Chip/Straw Board, Cold Storage, Cotton Ginning & Pressing, Cotton Waste, Doubling of Yam,
Fruit Juices, Foundry Products, Pesticides & Insecticides, Packages, Poullry Feed, Rice
Mills, Sizing of Yarn, Solvent Qil Extraction, Soap & Detergent, Tannery, Textile Processing
etc.

To meet the demands of Gwadar indusiry, TUSDEC is proposing “Industrialization and skill
support centre” which will be in capacity to:

e Scan imported or locally manufactured parts
« Able to testidentify material being used in the products/parts

Technology Upgradation ang Skill Development Company
Ministry of Industries and Production
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s Able to design these parts according to the needs and demands of induslry
« Able to manufacture specific metal parts
« Conduct analysis on the design and material type of paris/products accordingly

Project Cost, Project life & HR:

» Rs. 800 Mn (Capex: Rs. 500 Mn, Opex: Rs. 300 Mn)
« 1-year execution & 3 years operations for demonstration
» 5 persons

Impact:

« Contribution of manufacturing industry in GDP will increase
« Exports will increase due to the quality products manufacturing and standardization
« Imports will decrease due to low cost local available and manufactured quality
products
SMEs will increase due to international demands
Employment in Manufacturing sector will increase as the SME sector grows

Outputs:

Approximately 350 tests per year will be conducted

Metal manufactured parts/products exports will increase
25 local manufactured products will be standardized
Services provided to 50 units per year

100 individuals/companies trained on designing per annum

Export Development Fund (EDF) Initiatives:

i) Support Centre for Protective Equipment (SCPE) (PKR 921.125 Million)

To mitigate the impact of trade deficit, TUSDEC aimed to establish the project for Leather
Industry of Pakistan. The objective is to make quality testing facllity available for this sector
by establishing a laboratory for Leather Personal Protective Equipment in Sialkot.

The proposed project will also help in achieving the “Engineering Vision" adopted by the
Government of Pakistan. The program is unigue in its kind and has not been implemented
before for leather sector of Pakistan. It will also improve the quality, recognition and
reputation of training and working conditions within existing system.

Objective:
Technology Upgradation angSkill Development Company
Ministry of ind and Preduction
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issues pertaining to the potential of leather manufacturing in Pakistan are particularly in
reference to:

« Establishment of I1SO 17025 accredited testing laboratory in Pakistan for Leather
sector including products such as shoes, gloves, garments, fashion products etc.

« Training, development, and consultancy of private sector on standard regulatory
requirements.

« Enhancement of exports of PPEs in global markets.
Impacts:

« 42 trainees will be trained in 2 years (Year 1 and Year 2)

o 21 trainees will be trained on Shoes Testing

s 21 trainees will be trained on Gloves testing

o 21 trainings will be conducted on Garments and other testing related to leather

o 21 Consultancy services will be provided to the industry on international
standards in 2 years (Year 1 and Year 2)

o 21 trainings will be conducted on designing courses

« 41,184 tests will be conducted in 2 years (Year 1 and Year 2)

o 30,624 Tests will be conducted on Shoes
o 10,560 Tests will be conducted on Gloves

i) Industrial Technology benchmarking (ITB) (PKR 99.58 Million)

TUSDEC proposed “Industry Technology Benchmarking (ITBY' of different industnal sectors
to develop bankable projects after third party benchmarking studies.

Objective: The primary objective of the project is to make the industry export oriented and
import substitution for local market by advancement and upgradation in technologies /
processes / products.

Purpose: The main purpose of this project is to identify technology gaps in the identified
seclors to increase the quality production capacity to enhance the export potential and import
substitutions for local market.

Sectors: Identified sectors are as follows;

¢ Fan Industry,
Leather Industry
e Agro-Food Industry

Technology Upgradation and, $kill Development Company
Ministry of Industries and Produclion
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« Textile Industry

iii) Investment and Technology Promotion Offices (ITPO) (PKR 95.298 Million)

Based on international best practices and effective implementation of ITPOs in various
countries, TUSDEC proposes establishment of Investment and Trade Promotion Office
(ITPO) in Pakistan will brings latest technology through integrated economies, information
and best practices sharing, delegate programs for exchange of experts, capacity bullding
and sub-regional cooperation.

The ITPO Pakistan will provide the following services

» Professional support to enterprises for partnership and business negotiations

« Guide potential local investors at each stage of the investment cycle, from project
identification through appraisal to implementation,

« Offer a full package of up-to-date information on screened and validated Investment
opportunities, including manufacturing facilities, and technology supply sources

« Provide first-hand knowledge on how to do business in local environments, including
legal and economic aspects.

6. OPERATING RESULTS

Your Company has a net Deficit of Rs. 91.70 million for the year 2023-24 as compared o net
deficit of Rs. 76.41 million in 2022-23.

The key financial figures have been tabulated as follows:

Year Ended June 30, 2024 | Year Ended June 30, 2023
Rupees
_ (Deficit) Surplus) before Tax (90,422,816) (76,405,747)
- Levy / final taxation (1.278.,944) - B
- Surplus/(Deficit) after Tax (91,701,760)" . (76,405,747)*
EARNING PER SHARE
Basic (Loss) earning per share come at Rs (3.84) Year 2023: Rs. (3.27)

*Reason for Deficit

Defict for the year under review include the major impact of depreciation on fixed assets of
the company.

Technology Upgradation anggSkill Development Company
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DIVIDEND

Your Company is a non-profit organization and all surplus earned would be employed by your
Company to meet its objectives. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) while granting license u/s 42 of the Companies Act, 2017 has also required that no
payment would be made to the members; therefare, your Company is not required to declare
any dividends.

OUTSTANDING STATUTORY PAYMENTS

There are nc outstanding payments due on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges
except the current year tax liability and amounts of normal and routine nature.

PROVIDENT FUND

The Company has maintained an employee provident fund and Investments out of provident
fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act,
2017 and the rules formulated for this purpose.

7. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year, four meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance by each
Director at the board meeting is as under:

'S.#. Name - | Eligibility | Attended
| Wrion-Execut‘iv'érﬁrectors: -
| 1 Joint Secretary, Ministry of Industries and Production 4 4
2 Representative, Ministry of Finance 4 4
3 Chief Executive Officer, SMEDA 4 2
Independent Directors:
_4—*Mr. Rana‘-r—ﬂasw Mehmood - | 4 3
' 5 Mr. Iftikhar Ahmad Jogezai 1
| 6 Mr. Nooruddin F. Daud 4 ' >
| 7 Dr. Mchammad Aslam 4 ‘ 1
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'S.#. Name Eligibility = Attended
8 Prof Dr. Youms Javed . - 44 g
’ ;Executive Director
' 9 |Chief Executive Officer, TUSDEC 4 4

The Directors who could not attend a Board Meeling were granted leave of absence in
accordance with the law.

BOARD MEETING FEE AND REIMBURSEMENT OF ACTUAL EXPENSES

S#. Name - Board Meeting Commltfee%iﬁéirﬁbumeme
Fee (Rs.) Meeting Fee nt of actual
(Rs.) expenditures
(Rs.)
I 'Non-Executive Directors: 1 ) |
1 Joint Secretary, Ministry of Industries and] 80,000 80,000 | 34,000
|Productlon |
d2 |Representatlve Ministry of Finance | 80000 60,000 51.666 B
3 Chief Executive Officer, SMEDA | 20,000 20000 | -
; 4 Mr. Rana Nasir Mehmood o | 60,000 =~ 12.660
5 Mr.Ifikhar Ahmad Jogezal _ 20,000 29,0007 1T &
' 6 Mr. Nooruddin F. Daud - - .
& Or Mohammad Aslam - = e .
| 8 Prof. Dr. Younis Javed - . - - -
i * Executive Director: ‘ ‘ |
9 Chief Executive Officer, TUSDEC 80,000 20,000 c
8. PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
The pattern of shareholding as of 30 June 2024 is as follows:
| Name of Shareholders Number of Shares

| Pakistan Industrial Development Corporation (Pvt.) Ltd. (PIDC}) - 23,882,998

Technology Upgradation a kill Development Company
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Parent Company . |
Rizwan Ahmad Bhatti 1 e
Rana Nasir Mehmood 1 2
Total _ 23,883,000
HOLDING COMPANY

Pakistan Industrial Development Corporation (Private) Limited has 99.99% holding of the
company.

9. FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK:

« The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company present fairly
its state of affairs, the result of its operations, its cash flows and its changes in equity.

« Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained

« Appropriate accounting policies have been applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent
judgement

« International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
the preparation of financial statements and any departure therefrom has been
adequately disclosed

e No material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of your
Company have occurred between the end of the financial year to which this balance
sheet relates and the date of the Directors’ Report

« The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively
implemented and monitored

« The Board recognizes its responsibility to establish and maintain sound system of
internal control, which is regularly reviewed and monitored

« The appointment of chairman and other members of Board and the terms of their
appointment along with the remuneration policy adopted are in the best interests of the
Public Sector Company as well as in line with the besl praclices

« The Board has complied with the relevant principles of corporate governance, and has
identified the rules that have not been complied with, the period in which such non-
compliance continued, and reasons for such non-compliance

« There are no significant doubts about the company's ability to continue as a going

Technology Upgradation an%,Skill Development Company
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concemnm

« Key operating and financial data of last six years has been summarized

10. AUDITORS

The present auditor's M/s Crowe Hussain Chaudhry & Co, Chartered Accountants has been
retired, The Board of Directors recommended the appointment of M/s Zahid Jamil & Co,,
Chartered Accountants for the year 2024-25.

11. AUDIT & FINANCE COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee 1s comprised of following Non-Executive Directors.
* Dr. Mohammad Aslam Khan - Chairman Committee
» Joint Secretary of Ministry of Industries and Production - Member
» Representative of Ministry of Finance - Member
« Mr. Nooruddin F, Daud-{Tamgha-i-imtiaz-Civil) - Member

12 Key Financial Data

SIX YEAR FINANCIAL DATA (Rupees in Millions)
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019

Assets

Non-current assets 1.391.58 1.421.07 1487.31 1,264.55 163.31 276.09

Current assets 1,100.74 972.22 778.32 1,120.00 954 08 80853

Equily and liabilities
Share capital and reserves

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Revenue

Operating expenditure

(Deficit)Surplus

1.035.53
336.72

1120.07 59,21
144.12 203.68
23582 280.09
{91.70} (76.41)

Share capital 238.83
Reserve (173.55)
Surplus on revaluation of Assets 970.25 |

1.011.28
50.71
27239
325.37

{52.98)

314,84

! 168.48
1,061.44 8a4.17 712.06
66,49 64,74 57.72
12143 1081 137.48
209.14 25546 286.71
(87.71) (146.36) (148.23)
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13- ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors places on record its appreciation of the support of the shareholders,
Government agencies and other parties.

The Board would like to express their appreciation for the excellent services and the efforts
being rendered by the executives and staff members of your Company.

\‘\'r-\//z,/r, ,\/\

Chief Executive Officer

Date: /4. )2- 2024 [
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7" Floor, Gul Mohaer Trade Centre,
8-F Main Market, Gulberg 11,
Labore-54660, Fakistan

Main +82-42-3575 92235
www.crowe,pk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILLS

DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Company set up under Scction 42 of the Repealed Companies Ordinance. 1984)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND
SKILLS DEVELOPMENT COMPANY (the Company), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at June 30, 2024 and the statement of income and expenditure, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material
accounting policy Information and other explanatory information, and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and accerding to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial pesition, the statement of income and expenditure, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2024 and of the deficit, its comprehensive deficit,
the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibiities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management Is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not indude the financial statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our epinion on the financal statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance condusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the finandial statements, our responsibility s to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
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materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this ather information, we are required to report that fact, We have
nething ta repart in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements cof the Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as the
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In prepanng the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
geing concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0,

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted In accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan
will always detect a material misstatement when It exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable In Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal contral.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.,
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast sianificant doubt on the Company’s
abllity to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are requirad to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Cur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
induding the disclosures, and whether the finandial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planred
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant ceficiences
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a)

b)

c)

d)

proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

the statement of financial position, the statement of income and expenditure, the
statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the
statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the
books of account and returns;

Investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Amin All,

Lahore CROWE HUSSAIN CHAUDHURY & CO.
Dated: December 16, 2024 Chartered Accountants

UDIN: AR202410051jU622SNfv
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TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Company set up under Section 42 of the Repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equspment 5 1,386,022 517 1,412,265,930
Intangible assets 6 - 2,049,633
Right-of-use asset 7 1,060,000
Long term Jepases a 5,554,020 5,652,300
1,391,576,537 1,421,067,863
Current Assets
Projects assets 9 1,044,986,942 905,545,386
Trade receivables 10 2,392,109 4,115,047
Stores and spares 11 10,763,209 11,348,706
Advances, prepayments and other recelvables 12 1,911,719 2,126,061
Shoret term imvestments 13 10,000,000 10,000,000
Tax refund due from the Government 14 20,673,491 22,163,038
Cash and bark balances 15 9,994,268 16,915,143
1,100,741,738 972,221,381
TOTAL ASSETS &‘lﬁ'im‘zﬁ 2|£3l289i244
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Rescrves
Authonzed share capital
135,000,000 (2023: 135,000,000) orenary
shares of Rs. 10 each L350,000,000 __1.350,000,000
Issued, subscribed end paid-up capital 16 236,830,000 238,830,000
Reserves (173,550,793 1150,495,797)
Surplus on revaluation of praperty, pant and equipment 17 970,251,681 1,038,898,447
Total Equity 1,035,530,690  1,127,232,650
Non-Current Liabllities
Deflerred grant
- Grart refated to cperating fixed assets i8 298,551,804 257,352,680
- Grant related to projects 18 38,167,673 949,45/ 606
336,719,477 1,206,850,286
Current Liahilities
Current particn - deferred grant 18.6 1,032,966,041 | .
Trade and other payables 19 69,651,667 49,758,483
Lease Lability - 333,148
Project liabidities 20 17,428,200 9,114,677
1,120,067,508 59,206,308
Contingencies and Commitments 2L - -
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 2,482,318,275 2,393 259,244
The annexad notes from 1 to 36 form an integral pert of these financel stataments, ™ ’:

M

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Company set up under Section 42 of the Repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984)

STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Income
Income from services 22 93,951,114 135,229,180
Amortization of grant 23 45,433,001 49,762,360 |
139,385,015 184,991,540

Cost of Services
Qperating cost 24 119,401,002 149,153,437
Projects expenses 25 6,973,025 13,348,033

(126,374 ,027) glGZ,SOl,-WO!
Gross Profit 13,010,988 22,490,070
Administrative axpenses 26 (108,170,457) (117,581,136)
Other income 27 4,736,653 18,685,319
Deficit before Levy and Taxation (%0,422,816) (16,405,747}
Levy / final taxation 28 (1,278,944)
Deficit before Taxation (91,701,760) (76,405,.747)
Taxcation v
Net Deficit for the Year (81,701,760) (76,405,747)

The annexed notes from 1 o 36 farm an Integral part of these fnancal statements.

D2\

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Company set up under Section 42 of the Repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984)

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
Net Deficit for the Year (91,701,760} (76,405,747)
Other comprehensive income:
Jtevns that may be rediassified to income and expenditure in - -
Subsequent penods
Jtams that showd not be redlassified to income and expenditure in -
subseguent penoGs
Total Comprehensive Deficit for the Year (91,701,760) {76,405,747)

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of thase finandd statements.
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TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Company set up under Section 42 of the Repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

1 ) Surplus on
Particulars Subscribed and Reveluntion of Total
Accumudated | ., o Reserve|  Subtotel Property, Plant
Paid-up Capital Loss
and Equipment
Rupees Rupesas Rupees Rugees Rupaes Hupaes
Balance at June 30, 2022 238,830,000 (647,871,979) 504,865,626 (143,006,353) 1,107,814,750 1,203,638, 57
Incremental depreciation charge - 68,916,303 - 68,916,303 (68,916,303) =
Total comprehersive defiot for the year - (70,405,747) - (76,405,747) (76,405,747)
Balance at June 30, 2023 238,830,000 {655,361,423) 504,865,625 {150,495,797) 1,038,698 447 1,127,232 650
incremental depreciation charge 68,336,214 68,336,214 (68,336,214)
Surpius realized on deposal of assets - 310,550 - 310,550 (310,550)
Total comprenensive defick for the year {91,701,760) 191,701,760) (91,701,760}
Balance as at June 30, 2024 238,830,000 (676,416,419) 504,865,626 (173,550,793) 970,251,683 1,035,530,890

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral parn of thess financial statements.

13.\/2’ A k_v\
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TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Company set up under Section 42 of the Repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
2024 _.2023
Note Rupees Rupees
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Deficit before taxation {91,701,760) (76,405,747)
Adjustment for
- [nterast income 27 (2,053,495) (2,337,276)
- Depeaciation on property, plant and equpment 5 106,455,164 103,728,474
- Income from disposal of property, plant and equipment 27 (380,530) -
- Amortization on irtangibles [ 2,045,633 1,989,351
- Dapraciation on right-of-use asset 7 237,67 360,000
- Amortization of deferred grant 23 (45,433,901) (49,762,360)
60,874,520 53,578,189
Operating deficit before working capital changes (30,827,190) (22,427 558)
(Increase) / decrease in current assats
- Projects assets ) (139,541,556) {219,592,930)
- Trade recewvabies 10 1,732,938 723,539
- Stores end speres 11 563,497 (653,953)
- Advences, prepayments and other receivaiies 12 229,219 857,169
Increase / (decrease) in currenk Eabilities
- Projects kabiites 20 5,313,523 (3,202,006)
« Trade and other payabies 19 19,803,164 11,693,831
(108,709,155) (210,854,352)
Cash Used in Operations (139,536 365) (233,291,910)
Taxes paid 14 1,489,547 545,438
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities (138,046,838) (232,746,472)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of praperty, plant and equipment 5 (80,502,301) -
Procesds from dispasal of right of use 7 842,301 -
Advances against capital expenditures - (40,031,560)
Long term deposts 8 98,280 192,816
Inferest noome received 2,038,618 2,344,824
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 691,060 -
Net Cash Used in Investing Activities (76,832,022) {37,493,920)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Grant recelved during the year 18 471,173,953 343,219,918
Grant returned / adjusted during the year 18 (362,882,820) (97,910,132)
Lease amount paid (333,148) -
Net Cash Generated from Financing Activities 207,95) 985 245,329,786
Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents (6,920,875) (24,910 606)
Cash and cash equivalents & the beginning of the year 26,915,143 $1,825,749
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 2 ¥
The annexéd ml lltn/:!t an mtegral part of these financial statements
- J
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER "l—:-—:L
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Page 5 of 33
TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Company se1 up under Section 42 of the Repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984)
NOTES TO AND FORMING PAR'T OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Corporate and General Information

Technology Upgradatian ang Skl Dewvelopment Company [TUSDEC, “the Company™) s a Lompany, imiked Dy quarentes hawiyg share
capital, incorportad In January 2005 3na hcensed unoer SECon Se o IR repenled Conmpanies Dronance, 1984 (naw the Companes Ad,
2017). The Corpany is domciod  Pakistan and its prinopal actwty 18 O upgrade wehnoiogy and skills of key and strateac industris
dusters and cornect Pakistan 1o the global value charn, Pakistan [ndustnl Dévaapaant Covporation {Private) Limited (PIDC) bods 999359
shares of the Camgany.

Geographical location and adoresses of 3l Dusiness units ane as folow.

Seral No. Offices Addresses
I Registersd Office  State Cement Carporation Buikling, Kot Lakhpat, Near Race Oub, Lahore,
i Division unit Maorr Emanabad, Near Conmmander Cerarmics, 12-XM Kamoki, Gujeanwala
i, Divdsion unit Siakot By-Pass Chowk, Swlcot Road, Gujranwaia.
. Divigion unit 15t Floar, Samad Chamber of Camrerce and Industry, G.T. Road, Peshawar.
v Divigion unit Qwals Ahmad Ghani Reseacch Center, Butems Taketa Campus, Arport Road, Quetta,
W, Devigort unit University of Sialkot, 1-KM, Main Daska Rosc, Salkot.
Wi, Dovigon umit Plot @ A-45, Seniall Industris Estate Extersion, Tanoo Mubgmimad Khen Roed, Hydersbad.
Wil Division ynit Piot @ 1346, CECOS Industniad Lisson Center, Hayetatad Industrial Estate, Peshawar.
. Divigion unit Dlol 0 N-10A, Sector 19, Hub Industrial and Trading Estate (HITE), Lashela, Balochistan,
X Disison unit Mutional Institte of Design and Aralyss, Estate Cement Guest House Buldng, Man
Stadium Road, Dalmia, Xarachi
Ncte 2
Basis of Preparation

2.1 Statement of compliance

2.2

These financial stataments have heen propamd (n ancordsnse with the scccunting and réportiag standards as applicatile in Pakistan
The actounting and reportvg standards spplcabie » Pakive cumprse of.

- Intemational Friaroal Reparting Standsrd (10KS ) ssoec Ly Ve e rabossl ACcounting Standaras Board (1AS8) as notibed urdel
the Companes Act, 2017,

« Accounting Standards for NoL far Profit Organizatiors (VAOs) issued by ICAP ss natified undér the Campanies Act. 2017
- Provisiors of and drectives issued under the Companies Act. 2017

where provisons of sna directives ssued urder the Companics Act, 2017 défer from the IFRS and accounting stendards for NPOs,
tha provisions of and directives issued under the Comganios Art, 2047 hawe been followed.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the stoncal Cusk CoMvention exvept to the extent of the follawing:

Property, plare and equment Note & Stated at revaued
Intangitie assats nNote & Stated at revaued
Right-of-use ased Note 7 Stated at revaued

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements ane presared and preserted in P Rupees which s the Company's functional and presentation currency
Al the figures have besn rounded off 1o the fearest uooe. Uiiess otherwise states.



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY Page 7af 32
(A Company set up urder Secticn 42 of the Repealed Companies Crdinance, 1364)
Noves to and Fanming Part of the Financial Statements

Note 2, Basis af Preparation - Contwived.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgements

2.5

The preparation of financal staternents in conformity with approved accourting Standsrds, a5 applcable i Pakistan, requines the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It #s0 requires management to éxerose its judgment n the process of applywng
Campany's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are contnually evaluated and are based on the historical expérience, as
well 25 expactations of futlre events that are believed to be reascoable under the Circumstances, These estimates and underlyng
assumptions are reviewed on 8n cngoing basis. Revisons to accourting estimates are recognized n the period in which the estimate
i revisad o the revision affects anly that penod or In the penod of the revigan and future periads If the revision affects both cument
and future penods.

The areas where varaus assumptions and estimates are significant to the Compary's finarxial statements or where judgments were
exprgiced in application of accounting palicies are as follows:

- Usaful lives, residual values and deprecation methad of property, plant and equipement - Note 3.1 and 5

- Useful fives, residual values and amortization method of intangible assets - Note 3.2 and €

- Project assets in progress - Note 3.4 and 9.1.1

- Prowsion for expacted credit losses - Note 3.5 ard 10

- Estimation of provisions - Note 3.8, 10 and 11

- Estimation of contingent kabilities - Note 4,1 and Nete 21

- Qurrent Income tax expense, provision for current tax and recognition of deferred tax asset {foe carried forward ‘tax josses)
Note 3.18 and Note 28

However, the management beteves that the change in outcome of estmates would not heve 3 materdal effect on the amounts
disciosed In these fnanclal statemerts,

The bass and associated assumptions underlyng the acceunting estimates used in the preparabion of annual finandal statement of
the Company for the ysar have been consistent with previous year.

Changes In accounting standards, interpretations and pronouncements
Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are effective in the current year
The folkwing stardards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2023, These standards,
amendments and inkerpretations are either not relevant to the Company's operatiors or are not expected to have sgnificant impact
an the Compary's financial statements other than cortain additicnal discosures,

Effective Date - Annual

Periods Beginning on or
After
IAS 1 'Presentstion of Finandal Statements’ - Disdosure of Acoounting January 1, 2023
palcies [Amengments)
- 1AS 8 'Accounting Polcses, Changes in Accourding Estimates January 1, 2023
and Erroes” - Definition of Accounting Estmates [Armendments)
IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Daferred tax reiated to Assets and January 1, 2023
liabilibes arising from a Single Transacticn [Amendments]
« Inita Application of “IFRS 17 Insursnce Contracts and IFRS 9 January 1, 2023

Comparative Infocrnation’
Changes in palicy - Levy

During the year, the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) has withcrawn Techrecal Release 27 '1AS 12, Income
Taxes (Revised 2012) and Issued the IAS 12 Application Guidarke on Accounting for Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes' (the
Gaidance). In sccoedance with the Gusdance, the Company has changed its acocunting podcy to recognise minimam and final taxes
35 ‘Levy’ under ‘TAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ which were previcusly being recogrised as ‘Income
tax’,
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Notes to and Fareming Part of the Fanoal Statements

Nete 2, Bass of Preparslion - Contvmaxt
2.5.2 Standards, llwpmmmnutoamwedmnﬂmmammmmm
The folowing stendérds, amendments and interpretations are only effective for accounting periads, beginning cn o after the date

mentionad against each of them. These standards, Imerpretations and the amendmants are ether not relevant ta the Company's
aperations ar are not expected to have significant mpact on e Company's finarcial statements other than certan adatonal

discoswres.
Effective Date -
Standard or Interpretation Annual Periods
Beginning un or After
IFRS 16 ‘Loases - Lease Liability in & Sale and | easebace [Amendments] Janusry 1, 2024
1AS 1 'Presontation of Financial Statements’ - Non-currers Lisbilines
With covenants [Amendntents) January 1, 2024
1AS 7 'Statament of Cash Flows' and IFRS 7 Financiy Instruments: Disciosures'
- Supplier Finance Artangaments [Amendments) January 1, 2024
1AS 1 'Presantation of Financial Statemernts - Classidicalion of Lialiftes as
Current or Non-Cureent [Amendments] January 1, 2024
1AS 21 'The Efects of Chonges in Foregn Exchange Ratus  Lack of
Exchangeabiity [Amendments | larary 1, 2025

IFRS & 'Firancal Instruments’ and 1FRS 7 Financal Lustirunients Discaswes’
Cassification and Maasarement of Finand@ Insruments [Amendments] Janwary L, 2001

Othor than the aforesaid amendmeants, 1AS8 has also ssued the following stancdards which have net been adooted localy by the
Seaurities and Exchiange Commission of Pakstan:

- IFRS 1B - Presentation and Disclosures in Fviancial Statements

- IFRS 19 - Subsidiarics wehaut Publc Accountzoiity, Disciosures

~IFRS 1 - First Time Adogtion of International Finanoal Aeporting Starndards

< IFRS 17 - Insurance Cortracs

- IFRS S1 - General Requirements for Dischasure of Sustariability-ressted Fnancal Information
- IFRS 52 - Climste-Redated Disclosares

Note 3
Material Accounting Policy Information

Tre sgnificant aceourting pabicies adopted In the proparaton of these fnancial statements are set gut below. These polides have been
consistently apphied to all the periods presented except otherwse stated.

3.1 Property, plant and equipment
Owned

Property, plant and equipmert e stated at reaiued amount, being the fair value at the date of their revaiuation, less any
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent scoumulated Impawment losses, (f any. Revauation 1S camed out every 3 to 5
yeas to ensure that the aaying amount of aswets doss not difer matenally from ther fair value. Additions, suasequent to
revalugtion, are stated 3t cost less any identied impsrmenl s

Deprecation un property, plant and egquigment & O erocs (o Staterment Qaf meeme and exEenditure Oy applying gt Line menad
50 25 to wiite off tie vale of e assels oyer ther estiniates usedul SVES L e r3ies gven i Nate >

Deprociation of an aszet beging when @4 i§ Svasabing 1ar Use, |e. when it o the cation §nd condinon necessary for it tu be capatie
of oparating in the manner mtendad y management, Doprenation af an asset ceases when the asset is derecognized, Deprecation
does nat cease when the asset becames die or is reted from aciive usé unless the asset is fully depreciated.

Deprediation meathod, reskival value and Lseful lives of 2sses are revieweo at jeast at sach reparling cate ang adusted If impact an
deprecation Is significant,
Noemal repairs are carged to statement of inoome ard expendiure as and when Incurred. GUIns or losses on gisposal of property,

plant and equipment ae nouded n the cument year's statement of income and expenditure. An item of property, plant anc
AOURMmEN: IS Berecognizas upon dspass ar when no fulune Economic benefits are expected from its use o deposal,
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Note 3, Material Accounting Poalcy Infarmition - Continved ...

33

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-In-progress s stated at cost less identified Impairment loss, If any, and represents expenditure incurred on property,
plant and equipment during congtruction and installaton. All experditure connectad wih specfic assets incurred Ouring Installaton
and consiruction period are carriad wder capital wark-in-progress, Transfers are mede Lo relevant property, plant and equipment
Caegory 25 and when assets are available for wse.

Intangibles

thtleasclisWummofihsm&mmmmmmw»mmmﬁﬂawmm
Company and the cost of such asset can be messured refiably. Cost of intangible sssets incudes purchase cost and dinectly
attributatile expanses incidental t brng the software to its intended use.

Casts that are directly associatod with Identifiable saftware and have probable economic benefits bapand ane year, are recognzed as
an intangible asset. However, costs associated with the maintenance of software are recogrized as an expense.

Irtangitle assets are stated at revalued amount, being the far value at the date of their revaluabion, less any subsequent
accumulatad amortization and subsequent acosmulatad Impairment losses, If any. Revalsation is camed out with sufficent regudarity
to ensure that the carmying amount of assets does not dffer materialy from their fair vaiue. Additions, subsequent to revaluation,
are stated at cost less any identified impairment ioss,

Irtangitie assets are amortized, when these assets are available for usz, using the swraight line method, over its estimated useful life
over which economic benafits are expacted o flow to the Comgany. The useful e and amortization method s reviewed and
adjusted, if sppropriate, at each reporting cate. The rates determined o amortize the imtangible assets are dsdosed n Note 6

Impairment of non - financial assets

Assets that have on ndefinite useful life - for example, gocdwill or htangible assets not ready 10 use - are Nt subject to
amoretization and are tested annualy for impairment. Assets that are subject to deprecation or amortization are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in crcumstances Indicate that the camying amuourtt may not de recoverable. An impairmant
lss is recogrized for the amount by which the asset’s camying amount exceeds ity recoverabie amount. Impaiment ksses on fed
assets that offset available reviluation surplus are charged against this surplus, dl cther IMpairment Josses ae darged to stalement
of income and expenditure. The recoverable amount is the tigher of an asset's fair value less casts of dspossl and value in use. For
Utpnmusdow:\guwnmanntsaregroupedmtfelmwwsfavmnmm“mrmwumuemm
(cash-genarsting units). Prior Impairments of nan-firendal sssats {other than coodwill) are reviewed for possbie reversal at each
mﬂmd&e.lflmpﬁwﬁloslsmg&ad,heﬁme&ﬁm/ammﬂmchmswinfuuepmmsmalocateme
asset's revised carrying amount, less its resiual value, over its remaining useful life. Any reverss of impaiement loss of 3 revalued
aseed is treated as a revaluation Increase,

Project assets

TheCOmpnnyopuausmdemmmolmomnlmdmuuar\dmmM(uoP),wdwm
Company implamenting various Public Sactor Development Program (PSDP) fundad peojects 3s indicated In Note 9 of the financial
statemerts, During the development prass, the Company does not have the ownership of these projects, Therefore, the assets and
liabilities of these projects have been recognized separately from the Company's assets and liabilities. The fate of these prajects shall
be decided by the Gavernment after completion. The grants recewed for such projects are recognized in Note 18 of the financial
statemerts and same shal be agusted an completion of the relevant project.

Trade recelvables

Trade recsivables represant the Company's right to #n amount of consideration that s unconditional, Trade recenvables are camted at
mg‘rnlmmamomtlessapemedmmhwdmamkwormlomuommuatmemorﬁmdau. Bad debts are
written off when identifad.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carmied at cost. For the purpose of statement of cash flows, these comprise cash in hand and cash at
banks.

Balances from contract with customers
Confract assels

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods transferred to the custames. The Company recognizes a3 contract
asset for the eamed consideration thet is conditional if the Company performs by transfering goods to a oustomer before the
astomer pays consideration or before paymert & due.
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3.10

3.11

3.12

313

Trage recevvalies

A receivablle represents the Comoany's night to an amount of consideration that is unconditional. Trade receivables are camied at
original invoice amourt less expectad credit lss based on & review of 3l outstanding amounts st the year end. B3d debts are
witten off when entified.

Contract labiitres

A cortract lisbilty = the ocbligation to transfer goods ta & custoenar for which the Company has receved cansideraban from the
customer. A contract liability is recognized ¢ earder of when the payment 5 made or the pasyment is due if 3 customer pays
consideratian before the Company transfers goods to the custorner.

Stores and spares

Useable stores, spares and lcose tools are vakieo prnapally at First In Fest Out (FIFO) methods, while itens Consdered absakte
are carned AL ril value, Tiems ¥ transt ace valusd st cost comprising invisce value plus other chages pad therecn. Prowsion is
made in the fimancial staternents for siow moving store based on managemant’s bast estimate.

Employment benefits obligations
Defined commbubion plav

The Compary cperates a funced provident fund for 3l its reguiar empioyees. Equal morthily contributions are made o the furd both
by the Company and the employees at the rate of 6.67% of the basic salary. Obligation for contributions to defined contritution plan
is recogrized 04 & expoense in tha statomant of income and expendtve 85 and when inaumed.

Campensated absences

The Company pravides for sccurmulating compansated absences up ta two years, when the employees render services that increase
their entitlement to future compersated absences.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent kabfibes for goods and senices provided to the Company prcr to the end of finandal year which are
unpad, The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within short pericd., Trade and othar payables are presentad as current
listilities unless payment & not due within 12 months after the reporting perod, They are recognised intialy at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortsed oost Lsing the elfective interest method,

Provisions

A provision is recogrized in the satemant of financial pasition when the Company has a legal o construcive cbigation as a result of
2 pagt event, and it IS provatie Mat an ousfow of econemic benefits will be required to settfe the obiligation and of which a refebie
estimate can be made, Provisions are reviewad at aach reporting date and adjustad (o reflect the ourment best astimate

Government grants

Grants are mecognizad when there is reasonable assurance that the grant wil b2 receved and af attached conditions wil be
compbed with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recogrized as revenue over the period necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that & is intended 1o compersate. The Company meets its expenses with other incame, if any, 1o
the extent possibie while the balance expenses gre covered Ly the amortization of grant. When the grant refetes to an asset, ks
recogrized &5 defered income and transforred to the statement of income 3nd expenditure in amcunts egual to depredaticn over
the expectad usaful life of related asset.

Income recognition

Income represents the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for services rendered, net of discourss, [ncome Is
mogmdmmksmueﬂutmmmicmmmdwimmmﬂﬂmmnmmmﬂmmof
Income, and the assooated cost incurred, or to be nurred, can be measured relably.

Income from project implementation (senvice fee) is recognized aver the periad for which the activities on  projects are going on,
based upon percentage of completion method.

Inzome on investment s recognized on acorual basis and profit on Saving Dank aXcounts IS recognzed an recéipt basis.

Grants redated to incame are sccourted for in accordance with the reguirement of TAS-20 "Accounting far Government Grants and
Disclosure of Gavernment Assistance” (.0, Grants are recognized an & systemétic bass as income over the perods necessary to
match them with the refated cast which they are mtended to compensate.

Grants related o assets are recognized in statement of income and expendture aver the life of the depreciable assets,
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3.15

Taxation

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax, Income tax expense s recognized in the statement aof prafit or loss except to the
oxtent that relates 10 items recognizad directly In equity ar cther comgrehensive income, in which case it is recognized in the equity
or other omprenersive income.

Curront

Current Taxation with Pravision for current tapation Is based on taxable income at curment rates of taration after tking into account
appicable tax credit, rebates and exemption ailabie, If any as per Income Tax Ordinance, 2001

Current income tax assets and |ablities for the curent and pror peviods am measured at the ameunt expeded 10 be recovered
fram or paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enscted or substantively enactad by the end
of the reporting date.

The charge for cument tax is higher of corperate tax (higher of tax based on taxabie income and minmum tax) and aiternatve
corporate ta¢. Super tax apgicable on the Company Is also as per the spplicable rates as per the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
However, In case of loss for the year, income tax expense is recognized & minimum tax Szbisty on tumover of the Compary in
acoordance with the pravisions af the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,

c«wmmbwmw.mmwmmwnmmmmmMdmmmmm
current tax is edeifated Lsing prevalling tax rates or tax rates expectad 1o apoly to the profit for the year if enacted after taking hto
acoount 1Bx credits, rebates and exemptions, # ary. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered
necessary, to pravision for tax mage in previous years arsing from assessments framed durning the yesr for such years,

Altemative corporate tax is caladated #t 179 of accounting profit, after taking inte account the reéquired zdjustments. Current tax
for ourrent and prior peniods, to the extent unpaid Is recognized as a labiity, If the amourt already paid ¥respective of current and
price perfod exceeds the amount due to these periods the excess recocnized as an asset.

The Company offsets cument tax assets and current tax Sabiities if, and anly i, the entity has a legally enforceatie right to set off
the recognized amounts and ntends either to settie o0 a net bags, or to reallze the asset and settle the Sablity simultanecusly.

As par [AS 12 Applcation Guidance on Accounting for Mnimum Yaxes and Fnal Taces ksued by the TCAP, when the tax iandity is
calculated on txabie profits excesds the mirsmum tax, the porton equivalent to the minimum tax sheuld ba recorgnised as a levy 0
accordance with IFRIC 21 / TAS 37. Further, the Company shall also charge tac expense under kevy when tax is caloulated under final
tax reaume.

Deferred

Deferred taxation s sccounted for using the statement of finsnoal position lisbilty method peoviding for temparary differences
betwesn the carrying amounts of assets and liabilites in the financial statements and the comesponaing tax bases 1sed in the
computation of the taxabie profit, Deferred ta Hatiities are genaraly recognized for 3l taxable temporary timing deferences and
deferred tax assets (o the extent that it Is prodable that taxable profite will be aviilabia against which deductible temporary
differences. unused tax losses and tax cradts Gn be utikred.

Financial instruments

A finsncial instrument is any contract that gives nise 1o & financdal asset of co2 enbty and a firancal Sabdity or écuity instrumeant of
anather entity.

Financial assets
All financial assats are racognized at the time when the Company becames a party o the contractual provisions of the nstrument.
CassVigation

Financial assets are dassified in ather of the three categones: a3t amortized cost, at fair value theough cer comprehansive income
and 2t fair valua through statement of moom: and expendture. This clssification is based on the Company’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash fow charactaristics of the financial asset,

Indtial recognition and messivevrent

Al fir@ncad 355ets are Initally measured at fai value plus ransaction comss that are directly attributadle to s acausition except for
trade receivabie. Trade receivables are intially messured 3 tha transaction poce if these do not comtain 3 significant firandng
component i accoedance with 1FRS 15,
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Nore 3, Matorial Accountiag Policy Infarmation - Cantinue .

Subssguant messvement

Firancal assets measured at amortized <08t are subsequentty maasured Uging the affective nterest rate method The amortzed st
is reduced by Impaimment ksses, (1 any. Interect income, foresgn exchange gain of loss and imgairment. is recogrized in statement of
income and expend kure.

Finandal assets measured at far value through statement of income and expenditure e subsequently measured at far vaue
prevaiing st the reporting date. The difference arising i charged to the statement of statement of ncame and expenditure

Financial assets measared at fair vave througn other comprehensive income are subsequently measured at fair value prevading at
the reparting date. The difference arising |5 charged to the ather comprehensive income,

Deracogyition

Finandal assets are derecoanized when the contractusal nights 1o receive cash fiows fram the assets have expired. The difference
munmammanwmmmmmmmosmmmmmdhmmmmm.

Impavmment of financial assels

The Compary recognizes an slowance for expected credit losses (ECLS) for all financak asscts which sre measured al amortised
cost. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash
Maws that the Company expects to receive, discounted 3 an apprawemation of the origing effective interest rate.

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposurss for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since Initiad
recognition, ECLS are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possiole within the next 12-months (a 12-
month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been 2 significant Increase In credit risk since initial recogniion, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure, Imespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime CCL).

For trade receivables, the Company applies & smpified approach In calouating ECLs. Therefore, the Company does nok track
chenges in credit risk, but instead recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reportrg date. The Company has
mapm&mmmxqumuNsWIMlmmm,ad)ustndforfomrdluddnqhannsmanctoun
debtors and the economic envronment.

Financial Habilitles
Irataal recoguningn ad measIamNTIont

Financial listilities are initialy classfied at amortized cost. Such Eabiities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a
party to e tontractua provisions of the Instrument and incluce trade and other payables snd project hstdies «tc,

Subsaguait meastrament

The Company measures its financial llabilities subsequently at amortized cost using the EIR method. Amartized cost is caiculated by
taking into account any discount or premmum on Squisition and fees or costs tat are an Integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortzation 15 Induded as Minance costs in statement of income wnd @penditure. Dfference between carryng amount #nd
consideration pad & recognized in statement of income and expanciture when the liabilities ane derecognized.

Derecognition

A finencal liabilty is derecognized when the cbligation under the liabifty is distharged or cancaled or expired. Where an existing
firanda kability is replaced by another from the same lender an sulstantisly different terms, or the terms of an existing Tabiity are
supstantially modified, such an exchange or madificabon Is treated 2s 3 derecogrition of the onginal Rabdity and the recognition of 3
new liablity, and the difference in respective Garmying amounts is recognized in statement of income and expenditure. The difference
between the camying amount of & flinandal kabilty extingushed or transferted to another party and the consideraticn peid, Induding
any non-cash assets transferred or Sabiities assumed, is recognized In staternent of Noome and expenditure,

Offsetting of financial assets and financa labdities

A financial asset and a financisl lisbity is cffset and the net amount is reportad i the ssatemant of financial position if the Company
hés 3 legally anforceable nght ta offset the recogrized amounts and intends either to settie on @ net basis or to resize the asset 2n0
sertie the lability smuttaneously.
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Mate 3, Matenal Acconting Polcy Informabion - Continued .
3.16 Related party transactions

Note 4

Transsctions with refated parties are based on the transfer pricing policy that all transadions between the Company and the related
munmwnatmbmummmmm«;moanlieumoledmmmlndmmm
where it = not in the interest of the Company to do 50,

Summary of Other Accounting Policies

4.1

42

Contingent liabilities

A cortingent liability s disclased when the Company has 3 possible atligation &5 & result of past events, whose existence wil be
condirmed onfy by the octurmsnce o nan-ocosrence of one o mare uncertain future events not entirely wahin the cantrol af the

Company,

AmmwtuﬂwsﬂmdwmmmsanMnNMmu\atmrmpasteventsbmnsnupmbabhmalm
outflow of resources embodying ecenomic benefits would be required to settie the obligation cr the amount of the abligation camot
be measured with sufficient refabisty,

Leases

The Company assesses whether 3 contract contalns 3 lease or nat at the Inceplon of 3 CONract and reassesses whether & contract
IS, OF Cortainsg, @ lease furthe: when the terms and conditions of the contract are modifed,

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancelable period of 3 lease, together with both pericds covered by an option
to extend the lease if the Company Is reasonably certain to exerose that option and penods covered by an option to terminate the
lease if the Company |s reasonably certain o not 1o exercse that option.

The Company reassesses whither it & reasanably centain to exerose an extenson opticn, or not to exercse 3 termination cption,
upon the occurence of either a sigrificant event or a significant change in crcumstances that is within the control of the Company
and affects whether the Company is reasanably certain 1o exardse an option not previously induded in its determination of the lcase
term, or NOt 10 exercise an option previously Included in the determination of the lease term,

The Compary revises the lease term if thers is a charge in the non-cancefable period of & leass.
Company as a lessee

Recognition

The Comparny recognizes 3 right-of-use asset and a lease lubility ot the commencement date. A commencemert date is the date on
which the lessor makes an underlying azsat avallable far use by the lessae (the Company).

The Company has slected not to recogrize right-of-use assets and |ease tabiities for shon-tem leases of 3 undertyng assats that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases for which the underlying asset, when new, & of low-value as per the threshold set
by the Compary. The Company recognizes the lzase payments associated with thaee lesses as an expense on straght-ine basis
aver he nase tarm.

Initial measurement

Lease Nty

At the commencerment date, the Company measures the leass latslity at the present vatue of the jease payments that are net paid.
The kease payments are dscounted usng the mterest rete implicit in the Jease, or the Company’s incremental beerawing rate if the
impliot rate = not readity avadable. Generally, the Company uses its incremental bomowing rate as the descount rate.

Lease payments comprise fored payments Ess any lease incentives receivable; variable ease paymments thet depend on an index or a
rate; armcunts expected to be payable by the Company under residua value guarantees; the exerose price of 8 purchasa option If
the Comparty is reasonably certan to exorcise that aption; and payments of penaities for terminating the lease, if the jease term
reflocts the Comparry exerdsing an option to terminate the |ease.
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Notg 4, Other Accounting Policies - Cantaimaed .,

Right-of-use assat

The Company Intially messures the fight-of-use asset at cost. This tost comprises the amount of lease liabilny a5 inftially measured,
plus any lease payments made on o before the commencement date, less lease incentives received, nital direct costs and
estimated terminal costs (ie, dismartling or other site restoration costs recuired by the tarms and conditions of the lease contract),

Subseguent measurement

Lease fatility

After the commencament date, the Company re-measures the lagss fablity to reflect the affect of intsrest on cutstanding lease
liability, lease payments made, reassessmonts and lease modfications etc. Varable lease peyments not induded n the
measuremert of the lease llability and interest on lease liability are recognized in the income and expendture satement, uniess
these are indudad in the carying amount of ancther asset

Lease payments are apparticoed between the finance charges and reduction of the lease liakility usng the Incremerttal borrowing
rato implcit In the lsase to schieve @ constant rate of (nterest an the remaining balarce of the labitty.

Right-of-use asset

Afer the commencemert, date, the Compeny messures the right-of-use asset at cost less accumudated depreciation and
sccumuiated Kentifiod impalrment losses, (F any, adjusted for any ramessurament of the lease labiity. The Company depeeciaes
the cost of right-of-use asset, net of resdual value, from the commencement date to the eadier of the end of the useful life of the
right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term.

4.3 Scrap Sales
Scrap sales are recognized on transfer of control to customer,
44 Foreign currency transactions and translations
Transactions danominated In foreign currencies are initialy recordad in Pak Rupees by spplying the faregn exchange rate ruing on

the date of trarcaction, A% manetary assets and liabilites In foregn cumencies are transiated o Pak Rupees at exchange rate
prevailing at the reporting date. Exchange differences ere induded i statement of income and expenditure.
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Noe S
Property, Plant and Cgupment
2024 2023
Mote Rupees Rupoes
Operating Teed assets 5.1 1L3455590,957 137225430
Capita work in progress .12 S50 40,031,560
772518 o
5.1 Operating fixed assots
Year Ended Jane 30, 2024
Cost | Revalued Amount Book Value as
Description As et une 30, | Addbions | Acpdsian As st June 20, As et Jone 30, | Charge fx the Ao at June 30, at June 30,
w2 tamser | thvough memer |  DHPOSIE 224 - 223 Vear Dreposals 2074 2024
Rupwes A pess Rjpes Rupees RIpees ~ Rupoes Rupess Rupers Ruoees Ruzees
Land 570,754,115 - - 570,754,115 : 570,754,155
Bulkdirgs mnd mprosieans 56, 385,081 - . 08359,083 530 IPRE73011 12,671,782 291,195,721 107,163,362
OFice scupment 27,067,322 . {1,238,468) 25,428,858 10 20,557,669 7L (1,047,867) 20,304,431 5524407
PRt 3nd machinery 1,678,735 427 75,680,000 . - 1,758,415907 1 1,024,353 640 4,520,596 . 1,106,874 636 45,540,791
Computer equpenent 107,314,190 ¢ - 13,502,217) 103.812,072 33 102,276,319 4 675548 (3,406,682) 103,543,355 264,583
Pumituee and alires 16,679,869 . . {227,300) 26,452,505 30 19,334,175 SUIA02 (202,782) 20,044,956 6,907,571
Vehichn 81,654,635 842,30 2,456,806 20 73236635 2,508,501 - 76,164,9% £,332,000
Liteary books 250,775 - . 275 W 250,775 . . 250,775 -
—LEAAIE 8002301 [S567581) _2.366,)658% —ISSeL0n 106455164 {8557,331) LEIMEN  LISINIT
Year Ended June 30, 2023
Cost | Revatved) Amount Book Yalue as
Drescription A5 3 une 30, Acguisibon As at June 30, As st dne 30, | Charge for the A5 at June 30, at June 30,
RLpeos Ripess Rupoes Rupees Rupoes % Ruposs Rupees Rupses Ruoees Res
Lend 470,754,115 500,754,018 - - $20,764,115
Beidiags and mprovenents 160,155 (&1 308,350,083 510 765,043,613 12,634 520 - 225573933 119.785,150
Offios squpeent 27,067,322 7,067,322 10 15,745,173 £12,4%0 - 20,557 569 6,500,651
Pant and mach ey 1,678,755,427 1,608, 755,407 10 542 551,418 81,800,225 . 1,024 253,640 684,501,240
Compater equpment 107,314,190 107,314,150 33 97,504,790 4 TRAR - 103,278,219 503,971
fumilre a0 Nature 26,679,859 26,679,859 1] 18,417,965 516,210 . 19,334,175 7,345,691
Vehices 81,654,635 81,654,635 20 20,430,635 2806000 73,235,635 £,915,000
Libeary boaks 280,275 = 2025, W 250775 : 2 0,775 -
2,850,835 416 - - 290,835 416 1414855572 103,728,474 - 16,551,066 1,373,2543%0
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tove 5, Propenty, Pant and fgueamendt - Cootinved.,

5.2 Depreciation expense for the year has been afocated as falows:
2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupoes

Operatng cost 84520995 81,800,225
21,934,168 249

4
Adriinistrative expenses 2% 214928,
l£4§5i 164 lg&??&ﬁ 4

5.3  Pamicuars of mmovabie property {.e. land and buldng) in the name of Comparry am as folows:

Location e of immovable Total area Yards Covered arca Yards
Slafeot By-Pass Chorak, Siakot Road, Gujrarmwala Land and bulking 16,335 4,850
12-KM Karold, Gujranwala Land and bulkdng 9,680 4,530
Plot No. A-49, SIE Extenbon, Hyderabad Land and buildng 1,000 1,000

5.4 Latest revaluation of proparty, plant and equipment was camied out by an independent valer as o June 30, 2021. Had there bean
n0 revalyation, the net book valses of the revalued assets would have been as falows:

As on June | As on June 30,

As on June 30, 2024 30, 2023 2021
Net Book Forced Sale

Net Book Value Value Value

Rupees Rupees Rupes
Land 46,500,001 46,500,001 468, 140,996
Buidings &nd improvements 76,180,9:2 85,017,289 79,181,538
Oifice equpment 2,319,127 2627, 790 3,175,454
Pant and machinery 244,347 079 191,323,250 424,136,750
Computer aquipment 268,688 4.089,270 §115,000
Fumiture and fodure 5,063,616 5,780,855 2,710,875
Vehicles 1,055 851 354,417 10,522,500
375, 4 z!oogw, 155
5.5 Propeny, plant and equipment contain the following assets which are recesved aganst grant having net book value as follows (Refer

ta Note 18.1)

2024 2023

Rupees Rupees
Lard 14,000,000 16,000,000
Buldng 36,015,048 41,182,912
Office refurbishment - 362,270
Office equipment 832,586 1,080,879
Machinery 44172 811 191,304,%€0
IT infrastructure - 2,460,614
Fumiture and fixtures 351,35 4451,025
Softwares . 510,000

o M 71

5.6 In the year 2022, throe Engineenng Supoon Centres (ESCs) iocatod In Hydersbad, Lasbela, and Peshawar, which were part of a
project sporsored by the Minstry of Irdusties and Production (referred to as "the Niristry”), undarwent a mergar with the
Company. This merger was carriad aut In accordance with the exit strategy as approved In the PC-1. Following ths approval, the
Company's Beard of Dicectors, dunng their meeting on Navember 20, 2021, sinchoned the foliowing measures!

- The valuation of 2l fixed assets from the ESCs was recorded (n TUSDEC'S records at their far values, as determired by 2n
independent valuer. SimuRancously, cament assets and kabiities were documantad at ther carming vaues, with effect from July Dl

The bank accounts of the ESCs were transitoned to operate undar the name of TUSDEC

- As of Mty D1, 2021, a¥ employees previcusty affiiatzd aith the £5Cs, nemely Fyderabad Engineering Syppart Cortre (HESC), Light
Engineering Upgradation Centre, Lashela (LEUC), and Peshawar Light Engineenng Centre (PLEC), offically became employees of
TUSDEC
The financal and operational policies approved by the TUSDEC's Board of Directors were extended to cover the ESCs,

- The ESCs continued 10 occupy Selr exsting pramises, wthout any refocation or dhanges

57 Momawommnzomm“smwwmdmrmmmuammo:we(mm
Ceramics Deveopment and Training Complex (COTC) into Techrelogy Uparadation and Skil Development Company 8t its meating
neld on duy 18, 2017



TECHNOLOGY UPGRADATION AND SKILL DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Company sot up under Secticn 42 of the Repezled Companies Ordinance, 1984)
Notos o and Forming Fart of the Finandial Staternents

Note 5, Propacty, Paat and Egupment - Continued

Page 17 of 12

5.8 mmmmuwdmmmmmrmmagwmmwwmmus.mo.ooommmumm

value excesded Rs. 500,000,

5.9 Al assets are in the name of the Company and in the Compasy’s passession and contral,
510 Operating fixed assets contan fuly depreciated assets having cost of Re. 1,311,275 (2023: Rs. 250,775) which are shil inuse as at

the reportirg date.

5.11 The following methods and assumprions were wsed 0 estimae the fax values:

The sigrificant inpets used in the fair value measurements categorized within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, together with a

quantitative sensithvity analyss as at June 30, 2024 are shown below:

L _ Description Falr value Hicrarchy | Valuation Technique ]
Land Lowed 2 Markot Value
Buldng and improvamants Leved 2 Depreciated value
Office equipment Level 2 Degpreciated value
Pant and machinery Level 2 Depreciated value
Computer equipment Lovel 2 Depreciated value
Furniture and ficure Level 2 Depreciated value
Venides Level 2 Deprecated vaive
512 Capital work In progress
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Opening balance 40,031,560 -
ACduons during the year - 40,031,560
Transfars during the year . $
Clasing balance —0031580 80031560

Captdwuktnpmgenoonv!sesﬂemophwtgmmmbymmpiierwmonwquntEngnemCmn.The
machine hes not yet been commissicnad by the suppier, & the final paymant baing withhald due to the govwemment's ban on

supplementary grants,
Note 6
Intangible Assets
2024 2023
Note Rupocs Rupees
Intangitia assets 6.1 = m
6.1 Netcarring value
Opening balace 2045611 4,038,964
Addtion during the year - .
2,049,633 4038,584
Amuortisation duing the year (2049.623) (1,949,351
Closing batance - 2,049,
6.2 Gross Carring Value
Cost 6,028,335 6,028,335
Accumudated amortization (6,028,335} 978, 702
Net book value =
Amortization rate 3%

6.3 Latest revaluation of property, glant and equipment was camied out by an independent valear as on June 30, 2021. Had there been
no revaluation, the net book vakes of e revakied assets would have been as follows:

As on June 30, | As on June 30, As on June 30,
2024 2023 2021
Net Book Value| Nt Boak Value ";;‘:‘
Rupees Rupees Rupass
Accounting softwares - - 375,000
Modelling softwares - 3,021,251

3,395,251
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Node 6 Intangide - Contriund

6.4 Amoctization charge for the year amounting to fis. 2,049,633 (2023: R 1,989,351} has been allacated to admnisirative
expenses [Refer i Note 26).

Nate 7
Right-of-Use Assct

2024 2023

HNote Rupees Rupees

Cpenirg bafance 1,080,000 1,440,000
Add: Additions dunng the year - v
Less: Transferred to property, plent and equipmert. (842,301 -
Less: Depreciation charge for the year (237.,593) 000
Ciosing balance 71 . 1&&
Lease term (Years) 5 5
Rermaining lkease term (Yeors) - -

7.1  Guranwaa Tools, Dies and Moulds Cantre (GTDMC) leased a Toyota Corella GLI with the redistration number WO-834 an June
21, 2012, The lease agreement had @ duration of five years, and the Right-of-Use (ROU) arrangment shoud have been
oompmdamrmfm'yermHmr.momkloamwmmwmmmmde&wmesaaemnn(me
mnnlungieuldﬂnyofks.n‘),lﬁ.mc«nwmmwMMWNMM&\MM)L the
vehidle was revaluad to Rs. 1,800,000 Dunng the year, the payment of babnee lease lability was made and vehick: was
transferred in the Company's name,

7.2  Deprecation of nght-of-uss s s tharged to administrative expenses (Refer to Note 26),

Note 8
Long Term Deposits
2024 2023
Note Rupees hoees
Sui Northern Gas PApednes Limited 2,588,324 2,985,324
Rented premises 381883 381,883
Bectricty 1,657,677 1,657,677
Others 81 526,136 624,416
5,554,020 5,652,300

8.1 It mchdes bid deposts.
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Note 9
Projocts Assets
2024 _2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Prajects i progress g1 1,044,417,88¢ 905,477,918
Other recetrables 9.2 569053 117
1 905,545,386
9.1 Projects in progress
Foatwear Chuster Development (FCD) 211 77,982,928 74,590,600
Indusrial Desdgning and Autamation Centers (IDAC) 3.1.2 424,025,003 417,542,433
Natiosal Strasegic Program for Acquistion of Industiial Technclogy (NSPAIT) 913 358.778,671 230,421,309
Support Centre for Dental and Surgical Implants (SCDS) 214 183,630,982 176,870,440
Certer for Acssition of Semicondutior Technalogy (CAST) - 1,995,246
Naphtha Cracking Complex (NCC) - 1,600
lm‘plm 1

.11

Withia Footwear Cluster Development (FCD), ndMaal components of shoes such 85 molgs, Sohes and Soe lists are beng manufactured, This

FiUstve § essential 25 marufachorers currentiy hewe 16 Engert these components due to teir unavail iy in the 1ocal market. The propct =

competed on 30 June 2023,
’lu

Thi propct encompasses the estatishmest of warious Tadities, inchding Simutation/Autormation, 3D Scanning, Designing, Prototypirg, Trairing,

and Human Reseurca Development. Thess faciities wil achance e organization's caosbifites in 3reas such as cesian and imovetion, wirkforoe

developeent and procict protofyping.
9.1.3

The puspose of this project I 1o procere, FAegrite and énhanca tachnalogy utired I dlverse industng! sectors aooss Pakitars erconpasng

texties, constrogction (induding coment, ceramics, sartie, and granta), 35 well as engnessing and tachnaiogy (nchding licht engireenng, oLery,

gens, and jewelry),
914

biclogica structures, provide support ta damaged Srudhures, of ennance exstng ones.

This project 15 dedicated to the manufecturing of surgcal and demal mpiants, which are speciaized medical devices designed to replace mistng

9.5 Summery af prajects incuding their estimated tmeines , grant detals and campletion IS as follows:
[ Description | FCD | IDAC___ [ Nasparr | scos | 2 cast | NCC J
Date of commencement Nay 06,7019  February 14, 2020 Decetiber 29, 2021 June 01, 2021 February 11, 2022 February 11, 2022
Estimated tme of corpietion 3 Years 3 Yesrs 3 Years A Yers 1 Years 1 Yoars
Intial grant approves 78,530,000 972,570,000  3,206,§90000 720,345,000 296,820,000 296,820,000
Toka amour; of greet recetved 78,630,000 423,790,000 348,200 000 183,430,000 2,000,000 3,600,000
Rovisad date of completion June 30, 2023 June 30, 2025 NA ung 30, 2025 N/A N/A
Revdsed prare, If appicatie NJA 1,089 870,000 A /A N/A NA
Grare armount st recsivabile NA 46,080,000  2,858,690000 536,915,000 294,820,000 293,220,000
91,6 Projects In progress
[ Feo I IDAC__ | NASPAIT | scos | CAsT | Nee
Rupess Rupees Rupees Rupres Rupees Ripaes
Capital Expenditure
Balance as at June 30, 2023 50,462 601 344,590,383 92417811 137,176,000
Land - §70,500 - - - -
Buldng/chl work - . 26,625 832 8,000 - -
Mavinery andd eguipment - - 23,550,599 -
IT nfrastructure - - 2,508,692
Swores and spaes - = 13,139.813 -
Subborsl ae 8t June 30, 2024 50,462,601 345,560,883 158,542,747 137,274,000 -
Operational Expenditure
Baance & at Juowe 30, 2023 24,534,193 72,5952 050 138,003,498 39,694,440 1,005 246 3,601,850
Employees cost 2,452,062 3,689,377 8762, 4200515 - -
TUSDEC servics e - 1,000,000 44,500,000 200,000
Electricty, fucl and power 09,193 177440 2,048,081 541,818 -
Consumabies 386,758 119,640 345,466 0,820 -
Advertisement ‘ 11,700 631,905 118,079 -
Other expenses 47,915 914213 5495 066 1,029,630 -
Subnoty as at ke 30, 2024 17,520,327 78,464,920 200,235,924 46,355,482 1,995,246 3,601,850
Balance adjusted egairst deferred Grant - - ' - {1,565,246) (3,601,550)
Balanca 22 3t June 30, 2034 K L1 53 M KL - -
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{ O | TDAC NASPAIT scos | cast | NCC ]
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupoes Rupees Rupees
Capital Expenditure
Bafance as at June 30, 2022 41,063,001 254,352,903 54,584,694 137,026,000 -
Land . 235,303 - - -
Bulding'chd work 43,128 9,806,166 1,520,376 150,000 -
Office aquipment . 76,615,409 - - -
Machinery and equpment 9,132,851 1,901,554 25,512,191 - -
[T lafrastructure - 2,055,248 - - -
Stores and Spares 192,021 . - -
Subsotal as at June 30, 2023 £0,462 384 LE] 2417811 137178000 =
Operational Expenditure
Balance &5 at June 30, 2022 16,343,418 60,473,550 73,637,358 28,580,651 v
Employees cost 1,683,283 6,608,170 10,941,210 5,503,594 971,243 365,470
TUSOEC sarvice fee “ 2,970,500 43,100,250 4,180,000 - 3,000,000
Trowdlng & convepance 386,495 1,474,580 1,662,313 264,255 '
Blactrioly, fuel and power 948,793 119,480 1,182,738 235,831 .
Consumatios $43,198 58,500 576,264 - 124,220
Advertisemnent 855,155 559,354 951,580 329,305 - -
Other experaes 1,662,857 279,425 5,945,305 600,004 24,003 112,000
Subtotal as at Jure 30, 2023 24,514,199 72,352,050 138,003,498 35,654,49% 1,955.2% 3/401,690
Balance as at June 30, 2023 % I 5V K SO [ .V O 7 S . - - S 7. 1.1
5.2 Othor Receivables
2024 2023
Rupess Ripees
National Vocatioral and Techrrcal Tralnng Commission (NAVTTC) 371,844 §9,933
Mational Strategic Program for Acguistion of Insustrial Technokgy (NSPAIT) u 399 14, 399
Support Centre for Cental ard Surgical Implants (SCDS)
Footwear Cluster Deselooment (FCD) ﬁ,ﬁi 3,136
269,055 L7368,
Noee 10
Trade Receivables - Unsecured
2024 2023
Note Rupoes Rupees
Trade receiebiss - considered Qoed 2,312,109 4,125,047
Trade receiables - consioerad docDtid i%ﬁ? 4,379,202
485, £.504,740
Less: Provision for expected credit loss 10.2 (5.091,157) (4,379,202
kil 23087,

101 This halasce nclades ceceivable from PIDC amountng to Rs. 4,199,514 (2023: 4 199,514) In respeat of expenges noured by the Company oa 25

beha¥ for Skils Develcoment Centre (SDC) Khatl arc Batgram and & 1 past due for more than 5 wears,
10.2 Provision for expected cradit loss

Openng calance
Povision far the year

Less: Roverssd of expedted oedh loss

4,379,702 5,756,280

7134 .

5,093,157 5,756,280
- [1,376,578)
2093157 330702
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Kote 11
Stores and Spares
2024 2023
Rupees Rupeces
Stores and spares 11,937,559 12,501,456
Less: Provision for slow maving items (1,154,750) (1,154, 750)
e AL ISG 706
11.1 Provision for obsolescence of stock
Opening balance 1,154,730 1,154,750
Provision for the year 5 2
1,154,730 1,154,750
Less: Obsolete stock wilten off C -
LS4 1154250
Note 12
Advances, Prepayments and Other Recelvables
2024 2023
Rupees Rupaes
Advances o empioyces againat cxponses Tam7 20,72
Acvanca against rented premnses = 40,000
Prepaki insurance 892,072 1,172,585
Other recsvables 225,630 210,753
— QIS 2120001
Note 13
Short Term Investments
2024 2023
Naote Rupees Rupees
Faysal Bank Limited 13.1 10,000,000 10000000

13.1 This roprosents Temn Deposit Receipts (TORs) which are on rell-over bass, having maturity peniod of one to three morths and
carry mark-up @ 9.05% (2023: 7.3% to 9.05%) per asnum, appeoximately,

Notz 14
Tax Refund Due from the Government
2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Advande ncome tax - Net 14.1 29,673,491 21671740
Sales tax recenvable - 490,253
6D RIG08
14,1 Advance income tax - Net
Opening balce 21,672,740 21,379,308
Net < Payments made during the year 279,695 293432
21,952,435 21,672,740
Provision for taxation — {1278,044) A
—t I3
Note 15
Cash and Bank Balances
2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Caszh in hand 443,969 02,179
Cagh 3t banks:
« Cument accoynts 5,262,438 8,147,371
- Savings sccounts 15.1 and 15.2 3,288,901 8,365,593

Vv S L S LA
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Note 15 Cash and Bank Batancos - Covitarned
15.1  The deposits In sawng acoounts carry mark-up ranging from 10.5% to 17.5% {2023: 10.5% 10 17.5 %) per annum,

15.2  This inchades an amount of Rs, 1,2 milken (2023: Rs. xzmian)onmchmmm;mrkedunagamtguanmw

on behalf of the Company.
Note 16
Issued, Subscribed And Paid-Up Capital
2024 2023 2024 2023
Meumber of shares Hupess Rupees
e ZASEI00. . 20083,000 Ordrary shares of Rs. 10 cach fully paid in cash ~238230000 238,830,000
2024 2023
16.1 Recondliation of changes in number of shares is as follows: umber of shares
Opening baland 23,883,000 23,863,000
Number of shares issued | cancelied - .
Closrg balarce O T
16.2 MalhcrepomngdmPmnIndmbwdomun&rwaﬁm(m,mwmtmmpenym%.MMdmo
Comparty.

16,3 The Company has not issued | cancelled any shares during the year,
16.4 memnmmmmmumhddmfwwwmmmnm,mwmmmdﬂmmﬁmlrduodmﬁno
ate

16,5 Al ordinary shares rank equaly with regards to the Company’s resdual assets, Hokders of these shares are enbtiad t one vote
per share at conerad meetmgs of the Company,
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Nota 17
Surplus on Revaluation of Property, Plant and Equipment
Fumiture
Descriptios Land Buildings and Offica Plant and Computer Leased Intangibles 1
improvements| equipment | machisery | equipment and Vehicies Vehicle el
Rupers Rupees Ruoees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Ruperes Rupees
Balance as at June 30, 2022 524,254,118 18,599,359 4,484,292 520,963,3%2 3.17,778 1814758 934077 1,179,520 3,476,709 1,107.814,750
Incrememsl papracianon charges during the yeat {4.181,578! (602,419} (S2.8B4.825) (2.377.077) (249,920} (2341154 {294,880) (964.550) (62,916,201)
Surplus realied on dsposal of asses - - 2 K . E . x o A
- (4.101.578) {602,419} (57,884,815 (2,377 (249,920% (2.341.164) (294,830) {5964.410) (68.916.303)
Balance as at June 30, 2023 374,254,114 34,767.861 IBELEYS  463,078.537 950,701 1,564,829 7021581 BE4.640 2492299  1,008,838.447
Inorerartsl depmaaton chamed duing e yoar - (3.785.411) (4R5.976) (57,884,825) (855,166} 1196,363) {1.341.194) (294.830) (2.452,293) 168,336,214
Surpkss malzed on cisposal of assets - - (190,557) - {95,435) (24.518) - - - (310.550%
Trandes from L6 10 Wnd 35505 - . R - - o .
(3,785411) (626.573)  (57.884,825) {950, 701) [220.821) [1.750.434) (RB4.640) (2.4%2.299) (&8 646, M64)
Balance as at June 30, 2024 — RTINS0 20530 ST LGN 527038 R ¥ TR
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Note 18
Deferred Grant
2024 2023
Wote T Rupess To paes.
Geart related to cperating food acsats 181 298,551,804 250,352 630
Geart relstedd 10 (rojects ?
Grant redated to
National
Industrial Support National
Strategic Center for Devtsche
. Grantrelated| Engineering | TOUTVEOr | o ramtor | OeSiOning | Cemtiefor | o ciionor| Nephthe | Vecationdl | eiischatt for
Dascription Cluster and Dental asd Cracking | and Technical Total
to Assets | Support Centres Acquisition of Semiconductor 2 Internationale
Development 2 Automation Surgical Complex Training
{€sCs) Industrial Technology Zusammenarbei
(FCD) Technol Centres Implants (casT) (NCC) Commission t{G12)
(NSPAIT) {IDAC) (SCDS) (NAVTTC)
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupess Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupess Rupees Rypets Rupess
Note 8.1 182 183 184 184 16.4 185
Balance as at June 30, 2022 293,767,007 - 66,131,813 138,409,942 334,732,917 185583437 - - 9,839,004 22,718,730 1,013,202 860
Fands roceived cduring the year - 45,066,000 12,559,000 110,000,000 130,000,000 17,600,002 2.000,0C  5000,000 13,089,172 118 870 340,733,044
Other income - - 765,500 . 16,000 - - . 1,988 2,213,336 3,063
Amoitizatian of grant for the yea~ (36414 327) . . . - = . ’ [13,348,033) - (49,752,360)
Funds retumed | transferred - {1%,971,443) (3,8 17,974 27,294,420 5,853 4,758 310) (25,060 07,910,132
(364147027 33 884 557 §,464 630 90025498 102,721,580 11,254,143 1995246 31601,690 {256,873) (22,718,730} 195,567,426
Ealance as at June 30, 2023 257,352,6% T0,894,557 75,606,453 230,435,436 417,454,497 176,437,586 1,995,29 3601690 9,582,341 1,206,850,2856
Funds recetvod during the yoar 75,660,002 - . 189,000,000 120,000,000 88 100,000 - 1,664 000 459,324,000
Other Incorme - - 1,586,953 139,000 14 000 - - - 1,819,953
Amarization of grark for the yeer {38 460,876} . . . - - . - (6,973,025) (45,433,901 )
Gror adysted agaimt Project asset (1,965,246) (X601,600) - {5,596,936))
Furds reumed | Transterred - - - - = - (257,285 884
41,159,124 1,686 653 112,907,054 6,379,502 6,590,520 [1,995,246) [3601.659%0) ({5,309,025) - 162,857,232
Trarsfer W0 urret portan (77,383406) {348,342,5J0) (423,833,999} (183,428,108) 11,032,688 041)
Batance as at June 30, 2024 298,551 804 11,858 557 . . . - = Az g TR 9ATT

181 This represents grants recetved for acsets acquired under Publc Sacter Devsiopment Srogram (PSOP) funded proeds, Irdudng the Natonal Institute of Design and Analysis (NIDA} aod thrne Engineering Support Centers i
Hycorabad, Lasoels, ard Peshawar. These assets were sutsrcuerdy tansferred to TUSDEC after the compietion of their respective projects.
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18.2  As per the exit strategy sanctioned In PC-1 and the subseguent approval by the Company's Board of Directons duing Its 63nd moeting, thees Engineering Suppart Centers: (E5Cs) situated in Hyderatad,
Lasbele, ard Peshawer were integrated into the Company, effective from July 1, 2024
18.3  The Footwear Cluster Devefopment Project was completed durng the year,
18.4  These ane onguing projects funded by the Pulilic Sector Development Program (PSOP). Thek future status and continugtion wil be detervined cnce these peojects reach compietion and ther cutcomes
are assesced.
18.5  The Naticeal Nocational and Technical Training Commission (NAVTTC) Is an engoing project, sustained by doror funding and aversesn by the Minktry of Federal Education and Professansd Trainng,
NAYTTC holds the central mandate of advancing, faciltating, requiating, strategisng, everhauling, endorsing curricula, conducting training, and shaping poicy drecticn for the Nation's comarehensive
Tednical & Vocatonal Education ang Training (TVET) system, The project is slatest for completion In acecance wih the stipuleted termm outlined in the agrecment.
18.6 Reconciabon of defered grant, other than grant related Lo assets, with the project assets is given befow:
= = 2024 = __ t
[ " Description iSCs [ FCD___ | NASPAY IDAC | SCDC | CAST | NAPTHA | NAVITC | Total
Note Rupees Rupess Rupees Rupees Rupees pees Rupees Rupees Rupees
Dpereng defered gran IS8T 75 696,453 230,435,416 317454497 176,837,583 1,995,240 3,601,650 9,582,143 919,497, 606
Add:
Funds recenved - - 180,000,000 120,000,000 88,000,000 - 1,664,000 389,664,000
Other income - 1,686,953 135,000 24,000 . - - v 1,515,553
Funds psed * > (62,231,96)  (113,654,996) (81,409,480) - (257 285 284)
Amuetization of grast 232 . - - - . . - (6,973,025) 16,973,025)
Grant adjusted agans. Project asset 916 - - - - - (1,595,296)  {3601,690} - (5,596,935)
Transfer to Curent portion - (77,363,406)  [348342.530) (423833,569) {183,428 106) s = - (1032.958,041)
Clesing deferred grant - - - - - - 4,273,116 38,167,673
Cumrent partion of deferred grant - 77,363,406 348,342,530 423,833,998 183,423,106 . - - 1,032,968,041
Project liablities and cradtors 19E20 137,003 641 837 12,515,829 418,935 92 - - 508,723 23,565,203
Total liabilities A 34 183,720,982 - - 4,781,839 1,094,720,917
Less:
Recerable 62 - 92,315 14,399 ’ 9 S0 3715 565,058
Projects in progress S12R914 40,031,560 77,962,928 358,778,671 424025803 183,630,482 - S 1,084,545,444
Cash ang bant 15 . . 2,065,289 27,138 - 4,909,595 5 W2 ALS
Total assets 15,031,560 5,343 360,856,350 437,253,034 183,730,083 _ : T 4781839 1,094720,917
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18.7 The mavement of daferrad grant are as follows:
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2024 2023
Assats | ects Assets 1
Opening 257 352,680 549,497 608 293,767,007 717,515,653
Other income - 1,815,953 - 3006,67
Grant recened 79,660,000 383,604,000 310,233,044
Gramt lagsed - (257,265,885) . (97,910,132}
Grart uikzod [ amortized (38 460,876) (12,565,961) (36.414,327) (13.346,033)
Transfer to current portion - {1, 041) - -
Closing 156551801 38,167,673 TTASIERY GG AST e
18.7.1 Detail of grant receied dueing the period are as folows:
[ Project [ Receiving Date | Letter Date | LetterNo. |  Amount |
National Strategc Frogram 29-AuQ-23 15-A0g-23 No. 3(64)2020 12 500,000
for Acqusition of Industna L5 Nov-23 27-0ct-23 No. 3(84)2020 108,000,000
Technology (NSPAIT) 30-Mar24 16-Feb-24 No. 3(84)2020 62,500,000
29-Aug-23 15Aug-23 No. 3(3)2020 10,625,000
Industrial Cesigning and 15-Now-23 27023 No. 3(83)2020 60,000,000
Adtormation Centres {I0AC) 20-Mar-24 16-Fed-24 No. 3(E3)2020 49,375,000
Support Centre for Dental 21-Aug23 15Aug-23 No, 3(50)202¢ 9,000,000
and Sorgkal  Implants 30-Now-23 27-0ct-23 No. 3{50)2021 29,000,000
(SC0S) 4-Nar-24 15-Fead-2¢ No. 3(50)2023 50,000,000
National  Vocational  and 1O-May-24 N/A NJA 832,000
Technica® Traning 3-un-24 N/A NA 832,000
Note 19
Trade and Other Payables
2024 2023 2~
note Rupees Rupees
Creditors 16,062,927 13,078,658
Accruad loRbes 34,299,238 20,700,585
Contract Sabilnes 9.1 3,373,601 3,500,055
Provident fund payable 11,891,092 7466337
Withholding Income tax payabie 1,744,558 9279497

Employees benofits payable

19.1 Amount of revenue recognized from opening balance of contract liablities is Rs, 1,896,079
19.2 Contract liabikties are expected 10 be satisfied during year endng on June 30, 2025

2,275,261
§9,651,667

‘3,604%1

Note 20
Project Liabilities
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
These represent accrued expanses and payables in respect of the followang projects:
Industnal Designing and Automation Centres (IDAC) 3,418,955 3,635,115
Nathna Strategic Frogram for Acquisition of Industrial Techaoiogy (NSPALT) 12,515,829 4,621,589
Support Centre for Dental and Surgical Implants (SCDS) 292,876 118,809
Footwear Cluster Development (FCD) £91,8%7 232,700
Nationa: Vecational and Technical Training Commissicn {(NAVTTC) _ S8 500,464
—LA28200 _ SAIS67)
20,1 These liahiities will be settied won receiot of the grant alocated for she respeciree project.
Note 21
Contingencies and Commitments

211 Centingendes

Tha Company has provded bank guarantee in favour of Palostan State OF ameerting to Rs, 1.2 milion (2023 &s. 1.2milkn),

21.2 Commitments
There are no material commitmerks outstanding as at the reporting cate (2023 NE),
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Mote 22
Income from Services
2024 2023
Nate Rupees Rupees
Incoma fram:
Trainings 2.1 12,540,964 26,735,845
Projects 22 4,108,226 10,126,942
Laboratary test and 3D scanning 223 13,511,765 13,617,666
Tol manufacturng 22.4 17,590,139 31,490,933
Project implementation fed 2.8
G3395], 114 135220 180

221 msmﬂuummmmlmmmmnrlmmegmmamdmmmhhomlmdngaom@mm
ALOCAD, a5 well a5 other admirsstrative foes associated with differees donor projicts.

22.2 THs represents the armount recognized in respect of project’s overheads shared,

22.3 Tris mpresents the amount beng recognised in respect of incorne froe labaoratory test fee and 20/30 scanning.
22.4 Ths represants the amount being recognzed In respect of services provided 3t Gujranwale Tocls, Dies and Moulds Centre (GTDMC)

and Ceremics Developerent and Training Complex (CDTC),

22.5 Tris represents the amourt bong recognized as income from the Govemmaent of Palostan, spedficaly under the Ninistry of industres

and Production, n the farm of project implementation foes for Public Secar Develaprent Programme (PSDF) prajects.

Note 23
Amortization of Grant
2024 2023
Note Rupees Rupees
Amartization of grant related to asset 31 36,460,876 36,414,327
Amortization of grant related to iIncome 32 6,873,025 13,348,033
PN, - . 33 ) W— -7\
23.1 Amortization of grant related to asset
Land 2.000.00¢ 2.000.000
Buikding 5,147,864 5147864
Office refurbshrment 352,270 24,542
Office equipment 248,253 317,136
Machinery 26,778,003 23,915,400
IT Infrastructure 2,586,720 2600, 10
Fumiture and fitures 713,550 570,079
Vehides 14,166 330,000
Software 510,000 495000
R |1, )7 S— 1.3 L% ¥
23.2 Amortization of grant related to Income
Natianal Vacaticnal and Tedhnical Training Commission (NAVTTC) 25 6973025 13348033
Note 24
Operating Cost
2024 2023
Nate Rupees Rupees
Salanes, wages and cther benefits 291 22421,2)4 34943142
Povesr and gas 10,626,204 27,315,547
Stores and spares consumed 275,145 160,816
Repairs and maintenance 571,576 606,833
Training expenses Inzy 136824
Cther cxpenses 35,000 24,464
Deprechtion on property, plant and equipment 5 84,520,996 81,800,225

116401002 143153432
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Nate 24, Cpevating Cost- Cantinued .

24,1 ThiS oudes an amount of Rs. 629,211 (2023: Rs. 1,279,924) recognized in respect of Provident Furd and Rs, 161,055 (2023: Rs.
440,592) in rospoct of compensated Aboerces

Note 25
Project Expenses

2024 2023

Rupees Rupoes
National Yocational and Technical Training Commission (NAVTTC)
Emplayee cost 4,712,892 6,679,314
Corsumabics 438,970 1,330,334
Other axponses 1821163 5338,385
Note 26
Administrative Expenses

2024 2023

Note Rupees Rupees
Saleries, wages and other benefis 26.1 55,082,657 54,445,740
Traveding, vehide ruming and maintenance 11,230,634 12,258,535
Pricting &9d stationery 201,299 564,877
Postage and telephore 1,325,824 1,719,403
Utiltes 4481 642 3,936,453
Rertt, rates and taxes 6.2 321,220 2,397,155
Lega and grofessional charges 916,379 358,385
Foes and ssbscription 77,652 331,958
Insurarca 876,377 1,226,390
Repairs and maintenance 1,226,855 937,321
Corsumablies 1,735,843 4412531
Janitoria sarvices 234030 1,503,144
Secwrity services 2,935,151 2612727
Profect expenses 80,700 3,170,559
Advertisement and business development 14,500 140,403
Finance cost 42,6894 186,716
Other expenses 7,41 242,013
Airors' remuneration 330,000 330,000
Balances wrtten-off - 2,363,251
Provision for expected credit joss 713,45 .
Deprecation on property, plant and equipmert 5 21,934,168 21,528,249
Deprecation on right-of-use ssvst 237,699 360,000
Amortization on intangibkes 6 2,044,633 1,689,351
—8 L2457 LZSSLI36

26.1 This ncudes an amount of R 2,820,215 (2023: Rs. 2,784,469) recognzed in respect of Pravicent Fund and Rs, 1,056,061 (2023: Rs,
1,850,631 in respect of compensated absences.

26.2 Rent, rates and taxes inchude expense in respect of short term lesses.

Note 27
Other Income
2024 2023
Rupees Rupoes
Bark profit on:
- Sanvings accounts 1,126,180 1,112,562
~ Term deposit receipts 927,515 1,224,714
Excess labiites written back 1,053,750 16,132,486
Gain on dispasal of essets 380,510 -
Misceflaneous 1,248 878 215

—a3055E
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Note 28
Levy / Nnal taxation
2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Levies 1,278,544 -

28,1 This represents mirimum tax paid under section 153 (1) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 representing levy In terms of requirements
of IFRIC 21/1AS 37.

28.2 Reconclllation of levy and income tax under IAS-12

Current tax experss for the year 3s per apphcabie tax Bws 1,278,944 -
Purticn of current tax Sabilty as per tax laws, represerming income tax weder TAS 12 - .
Pertion of lavy in terms of requirements of IFRIC 21 J IAS 37 (1,278,544} -
Defference - -

28.3 No deferred tax assat has been recognized as effective rate @lodated 5 zero as per 'IAS 12 Applcation Guidance on Accownting for
Minimum Taxes and Final Taxes” (the Guidance),

Note 29

Cash and Cash Equivalents
2024 2023
note Rupees Rupees
Cagh and bank baances
Short term vestments 15 9,991,268 16,515,143
13 10,000,000 10,000,000
25,915,143

Noge 20
Related Party Balances and Tronsactions

The related parties comrpese assooated undertakings, directors of the Company, key menapement perscened and post employment benefit
plars, Pokistan Industrial Development Corporation (Private) Umited, the parent company, holis 99.9% aptal of the Company. Amaunts due
from and due to related partes are shown under respactive noles to the financial statemeants,
Transactions during the year

Durirsg the year, there were no ransactions involving the Compary &5 its ralatad parties.

Dutstanding Balance as at the year end

Related party Relationship  Nature of transactions 2024 2023
Rupees Rupees
Pakistan Industrial Development Holdng Expenses inourred by the Company 4,195,514 4,199,514
Corporabon [Private) Limited Company on 25 benalf for Skils Deveopment
Centre (SOC) (Refer to Note 10.1)
Note 31
Financial Risk Management

31.1 Financial risk factors

The Companys activities axpass It to a vanety of frandal rigks: credit risk, Squdity nsc and market risk [inchuding cutrency risk, interest rate
fisk and price risk). The Company's overal risk management policy focuses on the ungredictaslity of finandal markets and seeks o mnimize
potential adverse effects an the Company’s financial performance. The Baard of Directars has overal responsibiity for the estabishment and
oversght of the Company’s risk management framewark.
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Note 31, Fnancial Risk Maviagenments - Contanued

The Board provides princpkes for averall risk management, as wel as polokes covering Spedfic amas such as oumency risk, interest rate risk,
credit rsk and liguidity rek.

{a) Market risk
Market nsk & the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreon exchange rates, Irtarest rates and equty prices will sffect the
Company's income o the value of its hoidngs of financld irstruments, The cbjective of market rik manogement is to manage and
control market rek axposurcs within acceptable parsmeters, while opimizing the returm.
(i) Currency risk
Currency risk is the risk that the fair vase ar future cash flows of & financal instrument wil fluctuate because of changes in foreign
echange rites. Currency risk arises mairly from Fture commerdial transactions or receivables and payables that exist cue to
transactions in forsign currences.
(§l) Interest rate risk

This fepresents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of = finandol instrurment wil Muctuate bacause of changes in market
mierest rates,

The Compary has ne significant long-term intérest-bearing financla Instruments. The Company’s interest rate risk arises from short
term mvestments and bank balances only, There are no financiad rstruments obtained at variabée rates o the Company Is not oxposed
10 cash fiow Hterest rate risk, Saving acounts and short term lnvestments are cartied ot fixed rate which expose the Company to fair
value interest rato rish.

A the baiance sheet date the nterost rate profie of the Company's iterest baaring financid instruments was:

Fixed rate instruments 2024 2023
Rupoes Wones

Shoet term investments 10,000,000 10,000,000

Floating rate instruments

Saving bank accounts —SA0L 8365533

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

As at Jure 30, 2024, If interest rates on the Company’s berramings tiad been 1% higher | fower with i othur variabies Feld canstant,
defick before tax for the year would hawve boan ower / higher by Rs. 22,860 (2023: Rs. 83,655), manly a5 a result of nterest exposure

an variable rate borrowngs.
(W) Price risk

Price risk represents e risk that the fair value or future cash flows of & Frendal instrument will fluchate because of changes in
market prices (othar than those ansing from interset rate risk o currency sisk), whether thase changes are caused by factors spedfic to
Indvidual financial instrument or 26 issuer or factors affecting all dmiar financal irstrument tadad in the market. The Company is not
epased 10 any market price risk.

(b) Credit risk
Credit rick represents the risk that one party 1o a finance nstrument wil cause a financad kass far tho ather party by fading to

discharge an obiigation. Carrying amounts af financal assets represent the maxmum credt expasure. The madmum exposure to aredit
risk at the reporting date was as follows:

2024 2023
Rupees Rupes

Long term deposits 5,554,020 5,652,300

Trade receivables 7A85,266 B,504,745

Advarces, prepiymants and ather receivables 191,18 2,126,061

Shoet term investment 10,000,000 10,000,000

Bank balances 9,994,268 16,915,143

MM
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2024 2023

The aging of trade receivables as 3t reparting date is as folows: Rupees Rupeas
Past due 1-30 days 545,454 857,707
Past duo 31-60 days 505,072 1,200,840
Past due 61-120 cays 172,548 1,223,328
Past due 121-365 days 1,085,101 618,830
Mare than one year 5,156,293 4,564,044
7,485,266 8,504,743

The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk as its exposwre s spread over 3 farge numzer of
paérties and trade receivables are SUBIECE to speanc cradt celings Dasad o ustomer credi history.

The credt qualty of bank balsnces hat are neither past due nor Impared can be assessed Dy reference t edemal oredit ratings (€
available) ar o histeeical information about courterparty default rate:

Rating Rating

Short term | Loag term Agency 2024 e

Rupens Rupees
Askan Bank Lirnited Als A+ PACRA 4,264,807 7,489,293
Bank Adfalan Limited A=+ A4 PACRA 7,313 6,665
MCB Bank Limited Als ARA PACRA 1,971,506 400,632
Sonen Bank Limeed Als AA- PACRA 20,706 18,425
Faysa Bank Umked Ala A+ PACRA 30,083 450,564
National Bank of Pakistan Al AAA PACRA égs,gg B 147,371
590,899 16,512,964

Due to the Compary's 0ng Stanting DUSNESS retinships with these counterpdries and 2fter giving due CoNSCRMLon to their strang
finandal tanding, the management does nat expect ron-performence by these courter parties on thar cligaticns 1o the Company.
Accordingly, the cradit rick Is minimal,

(c) Uquidity risk

Liquidity risk i the risk thet an entity wil encounter @fficulty in meeting chiigations assodated with financial labiRies. The Comparty's
spprosch to manage lquidty Is 1o ensure as far as possble to Sways have affident liguidty So meat 25 Jabiities when due under both
narmal and stressed conditiors wethout incurring unacceptabie losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation. The Company
uses difforent methads which assists X in menitoring cash flow requirements. Typicaly, the Comparry ensures that it has suffident cash
on demand o meet expectad operatinal expenses for a reascoatie periad, including the serwong of finandial ohligations.

Carrylng | Contractusl Less thea m“
amount cash Mlows 1 year years
- asnsen RRIPRRY wor e
Contractual maturities of financial iabilities as at June 30, 2024;
Trade and other payables 67,907,109 67,907,109 67,907,109 -
Project lizbaties 17,428,200 L7428 200 17 428,200 ’
55,335,309 85,335,300 _T;,‘_'simi_ =
Contractual maturities of finaacial liabilities as at June 30, 2023:
Trade and other payables 48,830,536 48,430,536 48,830,536 -
Project liabiities 9.114,677 14,677 4 -
57945213 57,945,213 57,948,213 -
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Note 31, Fnancia Risk Managerment - Contimuey.
(d) Fair value of financial instrements
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Faie vidue 18 an amaount for which an asset could be exchanged, o a Hablity settfed, between knowicdgeable wiling parties in &0 arm's

length transaction, Corsequently, differences may arise between the carmying vaie and the far value estmates.

The Company dassnes the financial instruments measured I the Satement of fnendal position at fair velue i accordance with the

folowing fair value messurement hierarchy:

Level 1 Quated market proes
Level 2 Valuation techniques using market cbservabio inputs
Level 3 Valuarion tachniquas using nan market cbiservabie nputs

There are ne financal instruments messured at fair vakeo by the Campany as st year esd,

31.2 Financial instruments by categories

Cash ng Loans and
cash atvences Total
uivalents
------- —— RUpees

Einancial assets as at June 30, 2024
LOong term depasits 5,554,020 5,554,020
Teada receivables - 2,392,509 2392108
Short term investments 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Bank balances 9,994,268 - 9,954,268

18,994 268 2.945,1489 27,340,357
Financial assets as at June 30, 2023
Long term gepasits - 5,652,300 5,652,300
Trade racoivables 4,125,047 1,125,047
Short term investments 10,000,000 - 10,000,000
Bark balances 16,915,142 - 16,915,143

S TN TET N ¢ £ /% -7 A Y/ 1 ./
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
2024 2023
Rupees Rupecs
Trade and other payables 67,907,109 48,630,536
Profect labities 17,428,200 8,114,677
A

31.3 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

Carryng values of ol financial assets and liabiities reflected i finanoal statements approwimate to ther fRir values, Fair value &5

determined on the bass of objectve evidence at cach reporting date.

Note 32
Provident Fund

The Company has maintanad an employea prowident fund and swestments out of promdent fund have been made in sccordence with the

pvonisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the nues formutated far this purpase.
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Note 33
Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer, Executives and Directors
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2024 2023
Chief Excoutive Chiaf
Director Exocutives  Exccutive Director Exocutives
Officer Offices
Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupees Rupoes Rupacs
Managenal remunerabon - - 28,982,510 144,000 - 34,264,374
Comtrioution to provident fund - - 1,502,728 - - 2,135,651
Board meeting fee - 380,000 - - 420,000 .
Commiltee’s meaeting foa 4 200,000 - . 560,000 -
Traveling and medical rembursements - 47,000 1,502,726 - 133,600 2,135,651
Fuel and mobie slowances - - m = - 9425000
ER— DAY LUSR0 47960676
Number of persons 1 [ 14 1 8 20

33.1 An exeastive i defined as an employes, other than the chief executive and executive directors, whose baskc safary exceeds Rs. 1.2

million in a finenoal year.

Note 34
Number of Employoes

Number of employees as at June 30,
- TUSDEC
- Prajects
The average rumber of emgloyees duling the year were a3 fallows:

- TUSDEC
- Projects

Note 35
Authorization of Financial Statements

These fnancal statements were approved and authorized by the Board of Directers of the Company for tssuance an Y- /o’-:_}o___":i.

Note 36
General

Figures have been rounded off 1o the nearest rupess, wniess otherwse stated. Corresponiding figures ane rearanged / reclasafied for better

preseniation, No redassilications / rearrangements have been mads in thesa financial statemants.
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